
    
                    
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin                                               Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  

Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph. D.     Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph.D. 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, August 28, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 

Rebeca Sosa Theater, 1401 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

 (In-person and virtually. See pages 3-4 for additional information) 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Invocation: Mayor Maria Mitchell 

 Pledge of Allegiance: Audience will lead the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 
   

3. Agenda / Order of Business 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

A) Recognizing Miami Springs Little League Softball Team for winning the District 
and Sectional Titles presented by League President Fred Gonzalez 

 
B) Recognizing Poster Contest Winners hosted by the Community Policing Unit 

presented by Officer Janice Simon; winners Joaquin Nolan (Winner Age Group 5 - 6), Penelope 
Valido (Winner Age Group 7 -8 Age Group), Ben and Lucas Espino (Brothers) (Winners Age 
Group 9 - 10 AND Overall winner), Sienna Daniel (Winner Age Group 11 -12) 
 

C) Yard of the Month Award for August 2023 – 464 LaVilla Drive – Ramona Pino 
 

5. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general City business, may do so in 
person (subject to capacity restrictions) or virtually by following the instructions on pages 3-4. This 
portion of the meeting also includes any pre-screened video submittals.  The purpose of Open 
Forum is to encourage residents and members of the public to address their concerns and make comments 
on any item.  The City Council will not enter into a dialogue at this time. City staff will gladly address any 
question, issue, and/or comment after the meeting. The Mayor is the presiding officer of all Council 
meetings and shall conduct the meetings accordingly. 
 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) August 7, 2023 – Budget Workshop 
B) August 14, 2023 – Regular Meeting 

 

REVISED 



7. Reports from Boards & Commissions:   

 
A) Re-appointment of Board member (Ecology Advisory Board)  

 

8. Public Hearings:   

 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Approving A Final Plat Application By 4649 NW 36 Street, LLC For Property 
Located At 4601-4649 NW 36th Street (Folio Numbers 05-3119-010-4040 And 05-3119-013-
3930); Providing For Conditions; Providing For Violations; Providing For Authorization; Providing 
For Recording; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   
 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Approving The Issuance Of A Purchase Order For Rental Of 
Undercover/Unmarked Police Vehicles To Royal Rent-A-Car Systems Of Florida, Inc. In An 
Amount Not To Exceed $41,359.11 By Utilizing The Terms And Conditions Of Miami-Dade County 
Contract No. Fb-01293 Pursuant To Section 31-11(E)(5) Of The City Code; Providing For 
Authorization; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Selecting Standard Insurance Company For The City’s Group Life And AD&D 
Insurance Coverage For Employees In An Amount Not To Exceed $46,695.00; Providing For 
Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Approving The Submission Of A Resilient Florida Program Grant Application To 
The Florida Department Of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Relating To The Implementation Of 
The Esplanade Canal Hardening Project; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An 
Effective Date 
 

10. Old Business:  None. 

 

11. New Business:  None. 
 

12. Other Business:  None. 
 

13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 

B) City Manager 
 

C) City Council 

 

14. Adjourn 



 CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
The City of Miami Springs will hold a Council meeting on: 

Monday, August 28, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. at  

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

(Physical Meeting Location) 

 
The meeting agenda is available online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings 

 
Elected officials and City staff will participate from the physical meeting location.  

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at the physical meeting location, or, 
alternatively, may watch or call in to the meeting by following these instructions: 

 

ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON AT THE PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION 

The meeting will be held in person at the physical meeting location stated above.  
Admission to the physical meeting location is on a first-come, first-serve basis and space is limited.  

Doors will open 30 minutes prior to the meeting start time.  
The City highly encourages those in attendance to wear facial coverings and abide by social distancing as 

recommended by the CDC.   

WATCH AND/OR PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING 

• ZOOM: Meeting ID 863-9512-4146 

• YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured 

• From your computer/mobile device: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings  

CALL IN TO THE PUBLIC MEETING  

Dial 305-805-5151 or 305-805-5152  
(Alternatively, you may also dial the phone numbers below to join the meeting: 

        1 (646) 558 8656, 1 (301) 715 8592, 1 (312) 626 6799, 1 (669) 900 9128, 1 (253) 215 8782,  
1 (346) 248 7799) then input the Meeting ID: 863-9512-4146, followed by #. 

There is no participant ID. Press # again. 

Any person requiring special accommodations to access this proceeding is asked to advise the City  
at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANS: 

EMAILED COMMENTS: Members of the public may email their public comments to the City in advance of 

the meeting. Please email the City at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the 
meeting with the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the following information in the body of the email: 
Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying 
Activities and/or representing an organization. Please limit your comments to no more than 350 words. 
Public comments received via email may be read into the record during the public comment portion of the 
agenda, if any.  

IN-PERSON COMMENTS: Members of the public may attend the meeting at the physical meeting location 
stated above and deliver their public comments in person during the public comment portion of the agenda.  

VIRTUAL COMMENTS: Public comments will also be accepted during the meeting using the virtual 

meeting platform as follows:  

By telephone: To ask to speak during the meeting, call in to the meeting using the instructions above. 
Please press *9 from your telephone and you will be called on to speak during public comments and 
identified by the last 4-digits of your telephone number.  

During the meeting, when your name or the last 4-digits of your telephone number is called, you will be 
unmuted and you may deliver your comments.  

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


Please be sure to be in a quiet area to avoid unnecessary noise. Please provide the following information 
before delivering your comments: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, 
and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. 

 

A time limit may be imposed for each speaker during public comment. 
Your cooperation is appreciated in observing the time limit. 

 
Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the 
City Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission 
to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of the City Council members 
present. In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments when 
addressing the Council during public comments. 

 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
The meeting will be recorded for later viewing and is a public record. The virtual chat, if any, will be saved 
and is a public record. Minutes of the meeting will be taken and will be made available. 

 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO §286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES 

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, AGENCY, OR 

COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, HE 

OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE OR SHE 

MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH 

RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise the City at least 2 days before the 
proceeding by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006.  

 

LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
In accordance with Section 33-01 of the City Code, adopting Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County 
Code, any person engaging in lobbying activities, as defined therein, must register at the City Clerk’s Office 
before addressing the City Council on the agenda items or engaging in lobbying activities. Specifically, all 
persons, firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, 
defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, 
decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or 
recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall 
register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall 
state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or 
entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been 
employed to lobby. A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk and 
online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0. 

 

Have questions or need additional information? 

Write: cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Call: 305-805-5006 

Mail: 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 

https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0
mailto:cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov


 
 1 

 
 
  

 City of Miami Springs, Florida 
City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes 

Monday, August 7, 2023, 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

In-Person/Virtual Council Meeting  
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Vice Mayor Jorge Santin 
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph. D.  
Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph.D. 
 
Interim City Manager Tammy Romero  
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria  
City Attorney Roger Pou  
Finance Director Chris Chiocca 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell 
Pro Shop Manager Mason Kegley 
Golf Course Superintendent Laurie Bland 
Public Works Director Lazaro Garaboa 
Public Works Assistant Director Lizzette Fuentes 
Planning Department Silvia Vargas (via Zoom) 
Code Compliance Officer Rosemary Novo 
Building Official Ulises Fernandez  
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Vice Mayor Jorge Santin 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 

3. Workshop on Proposed Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget 
 
 I. Opening Remarks by Interim City Manager Tammy Romero 
 
Interim City Manager Tammy Romero introduced the upcoming workshop and stated that 
the upcoming budget discussions offers Council various options and decisions required to 
finalize the FY2023-2024 budget. She presented a statement based on the proposed 
millage rate of 6.9900. The proposed budget reflects at the recommended millage rate a 
deficit of $594,603.00.  The new proposed budget includes a proposed COLA increase of 
4% for all General Employees and 3% for Police; includes adding a new part time code 



 
 2 

compliance officer; Health Insurance is increasing by 8.5%; Property insurance increases 
of 140% totaling $419,000; includes Police retirement payouts for $159,000; includes City 
Lobbyist for $45,000 and $36,000 for the grant writer; increasing Senior funding to 
$210,000; Public Works tree planting for $50,000 and tree trimming for $100,000.  The 
2023-2024 budget includes a $35,000 funding request from CMI for next fiscal year, 
$14,000 for the River Cities Festival, $6,000 request from the Historic Museum for storage 
costs. 
 

II. City Council 
Finance Director Chiocca stated that the budget shows a decrease in the Council proposed 
budget.  Council budget includes $35,000 for the Curtiss Mansion, $14,000 for the River 
Cities Festival and $6,000 for the Historic Museum’s museum storage costs and the 
installation of a new fence. 
 
Presentation made by Juliana Arias for River Cities Festival, she requested the funds 
including the $14,000 for this year; also for CMI on the Curtiss Mansion and the request for 
$35,000; in addition to the funding requested by the Centennial Committee in the amount 
of $125,000.  There were no further actions taken at this time.  Further discussion ensued, 
and the City Council did not take further action at this time. 

 
III. City Clerk 

 
The City Clerk’s budget is $21,040 more than last year. The increase is mainly due to the 
2025 City Election and salary/insurance costs. There were no further changes to the Clerk 
budget.   
 
There were no other questions or comments on this portion of the budget. 
 

IV.  Police Department 
 
Mr. Chiocca commented that the Police Department budget has an 11.6% increase than 
last year.  The increase includes $137,600 of equipment purchases.   
 
Police Chief Guzman answered Council’s questions to their satisfaction. There was no 
further action on this section of the budget. 
 

V. LETF Fund 
 
The proposed budget is $173,800 for the upcoming fiscal year. The Community Policing 
Office, except for personnel, is funded by the Law Enforcement Trust Fund based on 
federal forfeitures and guidelines, according to Chief Guzman.    There were no changes in 
this portion of the agenda. 
 
 
 



 
 3 

VI. IT Services 
 
The budget is $2,756 less than the current year, according to Mr. Chiocca.  I.T. Director 
Jorge Fonseca answered Council’s questions and there were no changes to the proposed 
budget. 

 
VII. Planning 

 
Interim City Manager Tammy Romero stated that this department will be present at the 
next budget workshop on August 21st. 

 
VIII. Parks and Recreation 

 
i. Administration 
 

The total budget includes an increase of $1,143 this upcoming fiscal year. This portion of 
the budget, Administration is $136,499 lower than the previous year. The budget includes 
the State’s minimum wage increase to $12.00/hr. for all part time staff, health costs, and 
COLA.  The Pelican Playhouse will receive a subsidy of $31,400 for the upcoming year. 

 
Parks and Recreation Director Luna and Finance Director Chiocca answered the Council’s 
questions.  

 
ii. Pool 

 
Mr. Chiocca stated that the proposed budget for the Pool is approximately $46,518 higher 
for the new fiscal year.  Increase is due to the minimum wage increase state-wide to 
$12.00/hr., health costs, and COLA.   

 
Parks and Recreation Director Omar Luna answered Council’s questions. 

 
iii. Tennis 

Finance Director Chris Chiocca stated that the Tennis operation is $151 less; budget 
includes $20,000 for resurfacing of two tennis courts.  There were no questions regarding 
this budget.   

 
iv. Park Maintenance 
 

The Park Maintenance budget is approximately $620 less than the current year.  Budget 
includes $25,000 for laser-grading parks.  There were no further actions on this portion of 
the agenda. 

 
IX. Senior Services 

 
Finance Director Chris Chiocca stated that the Elderly Services budget is approximately 



 
 4 

$188,426 higher than the previous year. This includes costs for the additional staffing, 
health, fitness and art instructors.  
 
Recreation Director Omar Luna answered Council’s questions to their satisfaction. There 
were no further discussions on this section of the budget. 
 

X. Finance 
 
Finance Director Chiocca stated that there was a 42.4% increase, $208,661, due to the 
new Finance Director position, COLA and health insurance costs for the department.  This 
section of the budget also includes the Professional Services budget.  He explained that 
the budget is lower this year, $77,506 or 28% approximately; grant writer continues to be 
outsourced and includes a new application communication. 
 
There were no further changes to the budget.  
 

4. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 10:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 5 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 28th day of Augsut, 2023. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 

 
 



 

 1 

      

 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Meeting Minutes  

Monday, August 14, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

In-Person/Virtual Council Meeting  
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell  
Vice Mayor Jorge Santin 
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph.D.  
Councilman Victor Vazquez. Ph.D. 
 
Interim City Manager Tammy Romero 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Roger Pou 
Police Chief Armando Guzman 
Public Works Director Lazaro Garaboa 
Assistant Public Works Director Lizette Fuentes 
 
2. Invocation:  Offered by Councilman Victor Vazquez 
 Pledge of Allegiance: The audience led in the pledge. 

 
3. Agenda / Order of Business: None at this time. 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

A) Presentation by Mr. Rob Gordon awarding the City of Miami Springs the STEM 
City of the Year Award for the City's consistent support of STEM activities at the Recreation 
Center over the last 10 years 

 
Mr. Gordon was not able to attend the meeting and is scheduled for a future meeting 
date.  

 
B) Lt. Vince Gonzalez of Miami-Dade Fire Rescue presenting the HELP Initiative, 

an outreach program that teaches civilians of all ages how to be a "first responder" through 
classes on how to perform CPR, apply tourniquets to stop the bleed, signs to look for in a 
person having a stroke, and how to help someone who is choking  
 
Mayor Mitchell welcomed Lt. Gonzalez to the meeting.  Lt. Gonzalez explained the 
benefits of the outreach program.  Mayor Mitchell and City Council requested that City 
Staff coordinate the dates and times in order to offer this training opportunities to 



 

 2 

residents. 
 
C) Pastor Dan Gossett of City Rev Church introducing his new church campus at 

the Miami Springs Baptist Church 
 
Deacon Chris of the Miami Springs Baptist Church was present and introduced Pastor 
Gossett and Pastor Robi Barnes explained how City Rev will soon begin their 
integration in the City by way of the Miami Springs Baptist Church.  Pastor Barnes 
stated he is excited to start working in the City and help with the future vision of the 
community.  The Mayor welcomed them and thanked the Pastors for attending the 
meeting. 

 
D) Yard of the Month Award for July 2023 – 1160 Heron Avenue – The Sandoval 

Family 
 

The Mayor recognized the Sandoval Family for their Yard of the Month Award for July.  
The Sandoval Family was present to receive their award.  They thanked the City 
Council for the recognition.  
 

5. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  
No speakers at this time. 
 
6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) May 15, 2023 – Workshop 
B) June 29, 2023 – Regular Meeting 
C) July 20, 2023 – Special Council Meeting 

 
Councilman Fajet moved to approve the minutes of May 15, 2023 Workshop, June 29, 
2023 Regular Meeting, and July 20, 2023 Special Council Meeting.  Councilman 
Vazquez seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, Councilman 
Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  None at this time. 
 
8. Public Hearings:  None at this time. 
 
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):  

 
A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Ratifying A Local Services Program Contract With The Alliance For Aging, 
Inc. Relating To The City’s Congregate And Home Delivered Meals Program For The City’s 
Elderly Community; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Approving An Increase Of $116,765.86 For The Purchase Of Two 
Sanitation Trucks From Nextran Corporation D/B/A Nextran Truck Center; Providing For 



 

 3 

Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 

Springs, Florida, Rescinding And Repealing Resolution No. 2022-4034 That Approved The 
Purchase Of Three 2022 Ford Police Interceptor AWD Utility Vehicles From Duval Ford, LLC; 
Approving The Purchase Of Three Dodge Durango Pursuit AWD V8 Vehicles From Garber 
Chrysler-Dodge Truck, Inc. In An Amount Not To Exceed $129,066.00 Utilizing The Terms 
And Conditions Of The Florida Sheriffs Association Contract No. Fsa22-Vel 30.0 Pursuant To 
Section 31-11(E)(5) Of The City Code; Declaring Certain Vehicles As Surplus Property; 
Authorizing The Sale Or Disposition Of Surplus Property; Providing For Implementation; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 

 
Councilwoman Bravo made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman 
Fajet seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, Councilman 
Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
10. Old Business:  None. 
 
11. New Business:   

 
A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Appointing Juan Carlos “J.C.” Jimenez As City Manager; Authorizing 
The Mayor To Execute An Employment Agreement On Behalf Of The City Related To The 
City Manager; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
Interim City Manager Tammy read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilman Vazquez made a motion to approve the Resolution as amended.  Vice 
Mayor Santin seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, Councilman 
Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs, 

Florida, Providing For The Collection Of Garbage, Trash And Recycling Service Fees Using 
The Uniform Method Of Collection Of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues; Providing For Maximum 
Fees For Garbage, Trash And Recycling Services; Directing The Preparation Of A 
Preliminary Assessment Roll; Establishing A Public Hearing To Consider The Imposition Of 
Garbage, Trash And Recycling Service Fees For Fiscal Year Beginning October 1, 2023 And 
The Maximum Fees; Directing The Provision Of Notice Thereof; Providing For Severability; 
And An Effective Date 
 
Interim City Manager Tammy read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilman Fajet made a motion to approve the Resolution as read.  Councilwoman 
Bravo seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, Councilman 
Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 



 

 4 

 
C)      Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Approving A First Amendment To A Continuing Professional Services 
Agreement With Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. For General Planning And Zoning 
Services To Increase Compensation By $11,000 For Fiscal Year 2022-23; Providing For 
Authorization; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date (Requires 
a 4/5 vote) 
 
Interim City Manager Tammy read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilwoman Bravo made a motion to approve the Resolution as read.  Councilman 
Fajet seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, Councilman 
Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 

D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Approving An Amended And Restated Interlocal Agreement With 
Miami-Dade County Relating To The Reestablishment And Distribution Of The Six-Cent 
Local Option Gas Tax; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
Interim City Manager Tammy read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilwoman Bravo made a motion to approve the Resolution as read.  Councilman 
Vazquez seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Santin, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Fajet, Councilman 
Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
12. Other Business:   
 

A) Request by Councilman Fajet to discuss permitted uses in the Gateway Overlay 
District 
 
Councilman Fajet stated that the current Gateway Overlay District is limited to certain 
permitted uses.  He stated recently, there have been several businesses that have 
interested in leasing space in the 1 Town Center building which are not currently 
permitted.  He requested for the City Council to consider a revision to the Gateway 
Overlay District ordinance in order to accommodate a more inclusive allowed uses 
list.  The City Council gave consensus to direct the City Attorney and Planning Firm to 
draft an ordinance revising the Gateway Overlay District with additional permitted 
uses. 
 
The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  Dr. Zayas; Maribel Martin; 
Leah Camps; Michel Gutierrez; Nicholas Rodriguez; Yohanna Hernandez; Jovan Rojes; and 
Frank Espinosa. 

 
 
 
 



 

 5 

B) Request by staff to discuss Calvin Giordano and Associates proposed Special 
Projects estimate 
 
Silvia Vargas of CGA was available and provided an overview on the proposed special 
projects that include, NW 36th Street Corridor, Gateway Overlay amendment, Zoning 
Clean up and update, GIS and Comprehensive Plan EAR amendments.  Ms. Vargas 
answered the Council’s questions.  The City Council stated that they will consider the 
projects at the budget workshop.    

 
 
C) Request by Vice Mayor Santin to discuss the request made by the Centennial 

Committee at the Budget Workshop on August 7, 2023 i.e. Centennial Logo (develop in-
house/outsource), Fundraising/Sponsorships, etc. 
 
Vice Mayor Santin requested that the City Council allow the development of a 
Centennial Seal in order to draft letters for fundraisers/sponsorships; they conceded 
to have the seal be developed in-house.  Interim City Manager also clarified that any 
letter should be drafted from the City not the Centennial Committee, she also 
requested that the Glenn Curtiss trademark be granted to the City and not to the 
Committee; Finance Director Chris Chiocca stated the funding raised by the 
Committee would be a separate accounting fund as a revenue/expense fund.  City 
Attorney Roger Pou reminded the Council that the Centennial Committee is an 
advisory board and designed to make recommendation to the City Council; any 
matters relating to funding, correspondence, sponsors etc. should be in conjunction 
with the City Administration. City Council gave general consensus to draft a memo on 
how the Centennial Committee should proceed with the items discussed tonight.  
 

D) Request by Vice Mayor Santin to have Bermello Ajamil, City Engineers/Architects, 
to assess the possibility of adding pickleball courts to current tennis court/racquetball center 

 
Vice Mayor Santin requested that the City acquire an estimate on assessing the 
possibility of replacing the racquetball courts at the current tennis center with 
pickleball courts.  Interim City Manager Tammy Romero there is no cost on attaining 
an estimate via a task order.  Mayor Mitchell stated that she has an additional space as 
a possible location for pickleball courts, such as the Curtiss Parkway parking area, 
right after the end of the bike path and Stafford Park. The City Council gave 
consensus to City staff to request an estimate from B&A to assess the possible three 
locations for pickleball courts.  Councilwoman Bravo updated the City Council that 
she has been meeting with the City Attorney in reference to updating the Country Club 
and bringing all the sports together as a sports center with amenities.  She stated that 
this will be brought forward at a future Council meeting with more details and funding 
sources for the Council’s consideration. 
 
13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
City Attorney Roger Pou had no report at this time. 



 

 6 

  
B) City Manager 

 
Interim City Manager Tammy Romero had no report at this time.    
 

C) City Council 
 
Vice Mayor Santin stated that as the Coucnil goes through the funding sources and 
wishlist items in the budget process, that the community has patience in the decision 
making process and understands that decisions are not short-term solutions, but long 
term.  
 
Councilwoman Bravo thanked everyone for a productive meeting and had no further 
report. 
 
Councilman Fajet stated the palm trees on South Royal Poinciana Blvd. look beautiful; 
and asked if the City would look into doing the same at the City’s entrance on East 
Drive and South Royal Poinciana.  He also inquired with Staff on the opening of Canal 
Street. 
 
Councilman Vazquez welcomed the Pastors from City Rev to the City of Miami 
Springs.  He also stated that there are speeders in town, and the possibility of putting 
out a social media awareness campaign on preventing speeding.   
 
Mayor Mitchell wished former Councilman Bob Best a speedy recovery.  She 
encouraged residents and visitors to visit local restaurants, since Miami Spice has 
kicked off recently.  She stated last week she attended the Florida League of Cities 
Annual Conference.  The Mayor stated it was extremely informative and networking 
with elected officials and city leaders of other municipalities with similar concerns, 
one hot topic was the increases in insurance.  Mayor Mitchell mentioned that it has 
come to her attention that the Town of Medley is looking into annexing the area that 
Miami Springs has been trying to annex for twenty years.  She reached out to the 
Mayor of Medley and confirmed that it was true he was looking into it.  Mayor Mitchell 
said that the City of Miami Springs is continuing to pursue annexation, and expects 
the support for our annexation pursuit as we have supported Medley’s.  She stated 
that the City has a commitment from Commissioner Cabrera that no other city will be 
allowed to annex the proposed Miami Springs annexation area while he is in office. 
 
 
 
14. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 10:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 28th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



City of Miami Springs 
Office of the City Clerk 

 

201 Westward Drive ‐ Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
Tel: (305) 805‐5006 Fax: (305) 805‐5028 

www.miamisprings‐fl.gov 

 

          

MEMO 
 
To:      Erika Gonzalez, MMC, City Clerk  
From:     Sandra Duarte, Administrative Assistant to the City Clerk 
Subject:  Board Appointments 
Date:      08/23/2023 

 
 
Please find below the Board appointment(s) that require Council Vote as per the following 
section:  
 
No board member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve an 
additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term 
shall be confirmed by a majority of the council. 
 
 
Board Current Member Group Term Expired Terms Served 
Ecology Advisory Board  Wendy Anderson-Booher Mayor 08/06/2022 3rd of a 3 year term
 
Mrs. Anderson-Booher has served on the Ecology Board as of 2009. 
She was voted as its Vice Chair on 2011 before becoming it’s Chair in 2019 and continues to happily 
serve as the current Chair. 
 
Thank you. 



 

Page | 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:   Zoning and Planning Board  
 
FROM: Hoyt Holden, AICP, via  

Silvia Vargas, FAICP, Principal 
Planner  

   Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. 
Planning Consultant 

 
DATE:   August 23, 2023 
 
SUBJECT:  Final Plat for Oliva’s Subdivision 
 
CASE #  01-ZP-21   
 
APPLICANT(S):  4649 NW 36th Street, LLC (“Applicant”) 
 
ADDRESS:  4601 and 4649 NW 36th Street (“Property”) 
 
FOLIO(S):  05-3119-010-4040 and 05-3119-013-3930, respectively.  
 
ZONING DISTRICT: NORTHWEST 36TH STREET DISTRICT 
 
THE PROPERTY:  The Property consists of two separate parcels of land and 
an alley between the two parcels.  
 
The 4601 parcel is rectangular in shape, with a width of 94.98 feet on East 
Drive and a depth of 183.77 feet on NW 36th Street. The subject parcel is 
17,319.0 square feet in size. 
 
The 4649 parcel is rectangular in shape, with a width of 95.12 feet on 
Mokena Drive and a depth of 183.77 feet on NW 36th Street. This parcel is 
17,346.0 square feet in land area. 

   201 Westward Drive 
 Miami Springs, FL  33166-5289 

   Phone: (305) 805-5030 
   Fax: (305) 805-5036 

 



 

Page | 2 
 

 
The alley is rectangular in shape, with a width of 16 feet on NW 
36th Street and a depth of 95.12 feet. The alley is located between 
4601 and 4649 NW 36th street and its land area is 1,522.0 square 
feet. This portion of the right-of-way of the alley was vacated by 
the City via resolution of the City Council approved on June 24, 
2019,  with certain conditions, in order to facilitate the development of the 
Project. 
 
The combined land area of the three parcels is 36,187.0 square feet. 
 
THE PROPOSAL:  The applicant is seeking to replat the property which 
consists of two separate parcels of land at 4601 NW 36 Street and 4649 NW 
36 Street, as well as the alley (a City right-of-Way) running between the two 
parcels. 
  
PROCESS: This is final plat approval.  The tentative plat was previously 
approved by City Council on May 24, 2021, under Resolution No. R2021-003 
with the following conditions: 
 

 Sheet 1 of 2, Legal description, Surveyor’s notes, and location map, 
dated, signed, and sealed by Omar Armenteros PSM, December 22, 
2020.  

 Sheet 2 of 2, Sketch of Survey and Geometry, dated, signed, and 
sealed by Omar Armenteros PSM, December 22, 2020.  

 
Subsequently, the applicant submitted the approved tentative plat to the 
Miami-Dade County Plat Review Committee and received notification of 
technical compliance on July 16, 2021, followed by three (3) extensions; the 
current compliance is valid until October 27, 2023.   
 
Now that technical compliance has been achieved, the plans for final plat 
approval have been submitted for staff review and approval by the City 
Council.   Upon council approval, the final plat will then be submitted to 
the Miami-Dade County Commission for final plat approval and 
recordation with the Miami-Dade County Clerk of the Courts.   
 
HISTORY:  This development project was previously reviewed and approved 
by the City Council on June 3, 2019.  At that time, site plan approval and 
the alley vacation were approved.   
 
The applicant obtained a variance for the maximum building height in 
order to accommodate a rooftop restaurant and retail and an 
architectural cover element. This request received a favorable 



 

Page | 3 
 

recommendation of the Board of Adjustment at the meeting of January 6, 
2020 by a vote of 4-0. The project was approved by Council, with 
conditions, under resolution No. R2020-001 at the meeting of January 13, 
2020, by a vote of 5-0. 
 
The tentative plat was unanimously approved by a 5-0 vote of the City 
Council on May 24, 2021, under Resolution R2021-003. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff has reviewed the final plat for conformance with 
the approved tentative plat and finds the final plat complies with the 
conditions of tentative plat approval and the subdivision regulations of the 
city’s Code of Ordinances. It is recommended that the request for final plat 
approval of the property be approved with conditions as follows. 
 
Substantial compliance shall be at the sole determination of the City. 

 
1. Pursuant to Section 150-019(D)(2) of the City Code, the Final Plat shall 

show, wherever required, the limits of areas thereof to be filled, 
together with the elevation of such fills. The elevation of fills, wherever 
required, shall be as established by the Dade County engineer's 
office, and as shown on the current official map of the City, on file in 
the office of the City Clerk. 

2. Pursuant to Section 150-019(D)(4) of the City Code, if appropriate to 
the parcel being platted or replatted, and required by the City 
Building and Zoning Department or other appropriate administrative 
staff, a plat or replat shall include properly dedicated alleys in the 
rear of the lots shown on the plat or replat, which alleys shall not be 
less than 16 feet in width, and in the alleys there shall be provided 
returns having 25-foot radii to permit free ingress and egress, where 
the alleys intersect other alleys, to permit vehicles to pass in and out 
without encroaching on adjoining property. 

3. Pursuant to Section 150-019(D)(5) of the City Code, all building sites 
and lots in residential districts shall have a minimum width of 75 feet 
and a minimum depth of 100 feet, and all building sites or lots in 
commercial or business districts shall have a minimum width of 50 feet 
and a minimum depth of 100 feet. 

4. Pursuant to Section 150-019(D)(6) of the City Code, the granting of a 
plat or replat is specifically conditioned upon the applicant's 
satisfactory compliance with all appropriate provisions of Section 
150-020 of the City Code . 

5. Pursuant to Section 166.033, Florida Statutes, all applicable state and 
federal permits must be obtained before commencement of any 
development.  Issuance of a development permit by a municipality 
does not in any way create any right on the part of an applicant to 



 

Page | 4 
 

obtain a permit from a state or federal agency and does not create 
any liability on the part of the municipality for issuance of the permit 
if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the 
obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes 
actions that result in a violation of state or federal law. 

6. Approval of this Final Plat does not constitute or imply zoning 
approval. The site plan allowing a project to be developed on this 
property shall fully comply with all relevant zoning district 
regulations, including site improvements and conditions of site plan 
approval.   

   



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-   

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING A 
FINAL PLAT APPLICATION BY 4649 NW 36 STREET, LLC 
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4601-4649 NW 36TH 
STREET (FOLIO NUMBERS 05-3119-010-4040 AND 05-
3119-013-3930); PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR RECORDING; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 WHEREAS, consistent with the requirements set forth in the City of Miami Springs’ 
(the “City”) Code of Ordinances (the “Code”), 4649 NW 36 Street, LLC (the “Applicant”) 
has submitted a final plat application (the “Application”), a copy of the final plat being 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference (the “Final Plat”), 
pertaining to a parcel of property generally located at 4601-4649 NW 36th Street, identified 
for property tax purposes by Folio Nos. 05-3119-010-4040 and 05-3119-013-3930 (the 
“Property”), as legally described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and  

 WHEREAS, on May 24, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution 2021-003 
approving the Tentative Plat for the Property; and 

 WHEREAS, City staff reviewed the Application and recommends approval because 
all of the requirements of the City Code, the Miami-Dade County Code of Ordinances, and 
State law have been fulfilled; and  

WHEREAS, public notice was provided in accordance with law; and 

WHEREAS, after a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council finds that the 
Application meets the requirements of the City Code and finds that the Application is 
consistent with the City’s Land Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 
welfare of the citizens of the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.  

Section 2. Approval. The City Council, after a duly noticed public hearing, 
hereby approves the Final Plat attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”  

Section 3. Conditions. The approval granted in Section 2 of this Resolution is 
subject to compliance with the following conditions:  



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 5 

a. Pursuant to Section 150-019(D)(2) of the City Code, the Final Plat shall 
show, wherever required, the limits of areas thereof to be filled, together 
with the elevation of such fills. The elevation of fills, wherever required, 
shall be as established by the Dade County engineer's office, and as 
shown on the current official map of the City, on file in the office of the City 
Clerk. 

b. Pursuant to Section 150-019(D)(4) of the City Code, if appropriate to the 
parcel being platted or replatted, and required by the City Building and 
Zoning Department or other appropriate administrative staff, a plat or 
replat shall include properly dedicated alleys in the rear of the lots shown 
on the plat or replat, which alleys shall not be less than 16 feet in width, 
and in the alleys there shall be provided returns having 25-foot radii to 
permit free ingress and egress, where the alleys intersect other alleys, to 
permit vehicles to pass in and out without encroaching on adjoining 
property. 

c. Pursuant to Section 150-019(D)(5) of the City Code, all building sites and 
lots in residential districts shall have a minimum width of 75 feet and a 
minimum depth of 100 feet, and all building sites or lots in commercial or 
business districts shall have a minimum width of 50 feet and a minimum 
depth of 100 feet. 

d. Pursuant to Section 150-019(D)(6) of the City Code, the granting of a plat 
or replat is specifically conditioned upon the Applicant's satisfactory 
compliance with all appropriate provisions of Section 150-020 of the City 
Code . 

e. Pursuant to Section 166.033, Florida Statutes, all applicable state and 
federal permits must be obtained before commencement of any 
development.  Issuance of a development permit by a municipality does not 
in any way create any right on the part of an Applicant to obtain a permit 
from a state or federal agency and does not create any liability on the part 
of the municipality for issuance of the permit if the Applicant fails to obtain 
requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal 
agency or undertakes actions that result in a violation of state or federal law. 

f. Approval of this Final Plat does not constitute or imply zoning approval. The 
site plan allowing a project to be developed on this property shall fully 
comply with all relevant zoning district regulations, including site 
improvements and conditions of site plan approval.   
 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 3 of 5 

Section 4. Violations. Failure to adhere to the terms of this approval shall be 
considered a violation of the City Code.  Penalties for such violation shall be as prescribed 
by the City Code, which include, but are not limited to, the revocation of the approval granted 
by this Resolution. 

Section 5. Authorization.  The City Manager, City Clerk, and City Surveyor are 
authorized to sign the face of the Final Plat and to execute any other required documents 
necessary for approval of the Final Plat consistent with and to implement the intent of this 
Resolution, subject to review by the City Attorney. 

Section 6. Recording. The City, or the Applicant if so requested by the City, 
shall record this Resolution at the Applicant’s sole expense in the Official Records of 
Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

Section 7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon adoption. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this   day of   , 2023. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 4 of 5 

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY



EXHIBIT A 
Final Plat 

 



































 

Page | 1   Revised 5/12/2021 
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Mayor & City Council   
 
FROM: Christopher Heid, City Planner 
 
DATE: May 24, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Tentative Plat 
 
CASE # 01-ZP-21   
 
APPLICANTS: Juan Carlos Oliva 
 
ADDRESS: 4601 – 4649 NW 36th Street  
 
ZONING DISTRICT: NW36 NORTHWEST 36TH STREET DISTRICT 
 
THE PROPERTY:  The property consists of two separate parcels of land and an 
alley between the two parcels.  
 
The 4601 property is rectangular in shape, with a width of 94.98 feet on East Drive 
and a depth of 183.77 feet on NW 36th Street. The subject property is 17,319 
square feet in size. 
 
The 4649 property is rectangular in shape, with a width of 95.12 feet on Mokena 
Drive and a depth of 183.77 feet on NW 36th Street. The subject property is 17,346 
square feet in size. 
 
The ally is rectangular in shape, with a width of 16 feet on NW 36th Street and a 
depth of 95.12. The ally is between 4601 and 4649 NW 36th street and is 1,522 
square feet in size. 
 
The total size of all three lots is 36,187 square feet. 
 
THE PROPOSAL:  The applicant is seeking to replat the property which consists 
of two separate parcels of land at 4601 NW 36 Street and 4649 NW 36 Street, as 
well as the alley (a City right-of-Way) running between the two parcels. 

   201 Westward Drive 
 Miami Springs, FL  33166-5289 

   Phone:    (305) 805-5030 
   Fax:    (305) 805-5036 

 



 

Page | 2   Revised 5/12/2021 
 
 

  
 
 
PROCESS: This is tentative plat approval.  A recommendation from the Board will 
then be transmitted to the City Council.  Upon City Council approval, the applicant 
must submit the tentative plat to the Miami-Dade County plat division.  Upon 
County approval, the plans for final plat approval will then be submitted to the City 
Council.   The final plat will then be submitted to Miami-Dade County commission 
for final plat approval and recordation with the County Clerk of the Courts.   
 
HISTORY:  The project received a favorable recommendation from the Zoning & 
Planning Board at the Board meeting of May 3, 2021 by a vote of 4-1. 
 
This project was previously reviewed and approved by the City Council on June 3, 
2019.  At that time, site plan approval and alley vacation were approved.   
 
The applicant obtained a variance for the maximum building height in order to raise 
a rooftop architectural element.  This project received a favorable recommendation 
of the Board of Adjustment at the meeting of January 6, 2020 by a vote of 4-0. 
Additionally, the project was approved by council under resolution No. R2020-001 
at the meeting of January 13, 2020 by a vote of 5-0.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the request to replat the property 
be approved subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Plans shall substantially comply with those submitted, as follow: 
 

• Sheet 1 of 2, Legal description, Surveyor’s notes and location map, 
dated, signed and sealed by Omar Armenteros PSM, December 22, 
2020.  

• Sheet 2 of 2, Sketch of Survey and Geometry, dated, signed and 
sealed by Omar Armenteros PSM, December 22, 2020.  

 
Substantial compliance shall be at the sole determination of the City. 

 
2. Any variances granted by the City Council shall be null and void if the 

applicant does not obtain a building permit and commence construction 
within one year of the date of the granting of the variance. If unusual 
circumstances exist, the variance may be extended by the City Council for 
an additional six-month period. No extensions beyond the time periods 
specified above are authorized.  

 

3. If approved, the final order, including any conditions upon which the 
approval is granted shall be incorporated on a cover sheet of the plans 
submitted for building permit. 

 







Property Information

Folio: 05-3119-013-3930

Property Address: 4649 NW 36 ST 
Miami Springs, FL  33166-6105

Owner 4649 NW 36TH STREET LLC

Mailing Address 201 TO TO LO CHEE DR 
HIALEAH, FL 33010 USA

PA Primary Zone 6100 COMMERCIAL -
NEIGHBORHOOD

Primary Land Use 1813 OFFICE BUILDING -
MULTISTORY : OFFICE BUILDING

Beds / Baths / Half 0 / 0 / 0

Floors 1

Living Units 0

Actual Area Sq.Ft

Living Area Sq.Ft

Adjusted Area 5,844 Sq.Ft

Lot Size 16,976 Sq.Ft

Year Built Multiple (See Building Info.)

Assessment Information

Year 2020 2019 2018

Land Value $543,232 $543,232 $475,328

Building Value $784,399 $1,116,768 $1,124,672

XF Value $0 $0 $0

Market Value $1,327,631 $1,660,000 $1,600,000

Assessed Value $1,327,631 $1,660,000 $1,600,000

Benefits Information

Benefit Type 2020 2019 2018

Note: Not all benefits are applicable to all Taxable Values (i.e. County, School
Board, City, Regional).

Short Legal Description

19 53 41 .389 AC M/L

COUNTRY CLUB ESTS SEC 2 REV PL

N95.12FT OF S110.12FT OF TR D

LESS EXTERNAL AREA IN SW COR

HAVING 25FT RADIUS BLK 131

Taxable Value Information

 2020 2019 2018

County

Exemption Value $0 $0 $0

Taxable Value $1,327,631 $1,660,000 $1,600,000

School Board

Exemption Value $0 $0 $0

Taxable Value $1,327,631 $1,660,000 $1,600,000

City

Exemption Value $0 $0 $0

Taxable Value $1,327,631 $1,660,000 $1,600,000

Regional

Exemption Value $0 $0 $0

Taxable Value $1,327,631 $1,660,000 $1,600,000

Sales Information

Previous
Sale Price

OR
Book-
Page

Qualification Description

12/05/2016 $1,950,000 30336-
4218

Qual by exam of deed

01/01/2016 $100 29927-
3209

Corrective, tax or QCD; min consideration

08/21/2008 $10 26539-
0388

Sales which are disqualified as a result of
examination of the deed

11/01/2007 $0 26064-
1518

Sales which are disqualified as a result of
examination of the deed

Summary Report
Generated On : 4/1/2021

The Office of the Property Appraiser is continually editing and updating the tax roll. This website may not reflect the most current information on record. The Property Appraiser
and Miami-Dade County assumes no liability, see full disclaimer and User Agreement at http://www.miamidade.gov/info/disclaimer.asp

Version:

2020 Aerial Photography  200ft

http://www.miamidade.gov/info/disclaimer.asp


Property Information

Folio: 05-3119-010-4040

Property Address: 4601 NW 36 ST 
Miami Springs, FL  33166-6105

Owner 4601 NW 36 STREET LLC

Mailing Address 3401 NW 82 AVE STE 370 
DORAL, FL 33122 USA

PA Primary Zone 6100 COMMERCIAL -
NEIGHBORHOOD

Primary Land Use 1813 OFFICE BUILDING -
MULTISTORY : OFFICE BUILDING

Beds / Baths / Half 0 / 0 / 0

Floors 2

Living Units 0

Actual Area Sq.Ft

Living Area Sq.Ft

Adjusted Area 13,571 Sq.Ft

Lot Size 15,260 Sq.Ft

Year Built 2001

Assessment Information

Year 2020 2019 2018

Land Value $488,320 $488,320 $427,280

Building Value $1,569,037 $1,515,548 $1,533,378

XF Value $66,544 $67,337 $68,130

Market Value $2,123,901 $2,071,205 $2,028,788

Assessed Value $2,123,901 $1,824,390 $1,658,537

Benefits Information

Benefit Type 2020 2019 2018

Non-Homestead Cap Assessment Reduction $246,815 $370,251

Note: Not all benefits are applicable to all Taxable Values (i.e. County, School
Board, City, Regional).

Short Legal Description

COUNTRY CLUB EST SEC 2

PB 10-79

LOT 13 LESS S15FT BLK 131 &

TR A BLK 131 OF PB 34-40

& LESS W4FT FOR R/W

Taxable Value Information

 2020 2019 2018

County

Exemption Value $0 $0 $0

Taxable Value $2,123,901 $1,824,390 $1,658,537

School Board

Exemption Value $0 $0 $0

Taxable Value $2,123,901 $2,071,205 $2,028,788

City

Exemption Value $0 $0 $0

Taxable Value $2,123,901 $1,824,390 $1,658,537

Regional

Exemption Value $0 $0 $0

Taxable Value $2,123,901 $1,824,390 $1,658,537

Sales Information

Previous
Sale Price

OR
Book-
Page

Qualification Description

04/02/2019 $2,900,000 31391-
2367

Qual by exam of deed

10/01/2006 $0 25067-
4349

Sales which are disqualified as a result of
examination of the deed

01/01/1996 $0 17065-
0985

Sales which are disqualified as a result of
examination of the deed

05/01/1990 $226,000 14605-
2034

Sales which are qualified

Summary Report
Generated On : 4/1/2021

The Office of the Property Appraiser is continually editing and updating the tax roll. This website may not reflect the most current information on record. The Property Appraiser
and Miami-Dade County assumes no liability, see full disclaimer and User Agreement at http://www.miamidade.gov/info/disclaimer.asp

Version:

2020 Aerial Photography  200ft

http://www.miamidade.gov/info/disclaimer.asp
































 

Page | 1 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

       STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  Mayor & City Council  
 
FROM: Christopher Heid, City Planner 
 
DATE: June 24, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Application for Site Plan Approval 
 
CASE # 03-ZP-19   
 
APPLICANTS: Juan Carlos Oliva  
 
ADDRESS:  4649 NW 36 Street  
 
ZONING DISTRICT: NW36, Northwest 36 Street District  
 
REQUEST:  The applicant is requesting site plan approval and alley vacation in 
order to construct an eleven story 292,194 square foot mixed used project on a 
34,037 square foot parcel of land. 
 
THE PROPERTY: The property consists of two separate parcels of land. The 
first parcel is located at 4601 NW 36 Street, with 180 foot of frontage on NW 36 
Street and a 85 feet along East Drive.  The parcel is rectangular is shape, 
containing 15,260 square feet. 
�

The second parcel is located at 4649 NW 36 Street, with 158 foot of frontage on 
NW 36 Street and a 95 feet along Mokena Drive.  The parcel is rectangular is 
shape, containing 16,976 square feet. 
 
A 16 foot wide alley separates the two parcels.  The alley is 95 feet long, 
containing approximately 1,520 square feet.  The applicant is requesting that the 
alley be vacated to create a single unified parcel of approximately  33,756 square 
feet.  
�

THE PROJECT:  The applicant is proposing the construction of a 291,570 
square foot 11 story mixed use building.  There is a two story CBS office building 

   201 Westward Drive 
 Miami Springs, FL  33166-5289 
   Phone:    (305) 805-5030 
   Fax:    (305) 805-5036 

 



 

Page | 2 
 

on each of the two parcels which would be demolished to accommodate the 
proposed project. 
 
The ground floor would contain 23,816 square foot of retail space fronting NW 36 
Street, as well as the ramp to the parking garage accessed from Mokena Drive. 
The second floor through the seventh floor would containing 402 parking spaces, 
with 383 spaces required. The eighth and ninth floors would contain 27,633 
square feet of office space on each for a total of 55,266 square feet. The tenth 
floor is a mechanical deck.    
 
 On the eleventh floor is a 17,368 square foot restaurant raised on pillars above 
the mechanical deck, including large terraces at the east and west ends.   
 
The building is designed in a striking streamline style  with dramatic horizontal 
banding capped with stylish rooftop restaurant. 
 
The Northwest 36 Street zoning district allows a base FAR of 1.0, with a 
maximum of 3.0 achievable through bonuses.  The applicant is request an FAR 
bonus of 1.9, allowing a building with an FAR of 2.94.  However, the project as 
proposed has an FAR of 2.3. 
 
While the alley would be vacated to the applicant, the City would in turn receive a 
full utility and access easement, allowing all utilities to remain and vehicular 
traffic to continue as it does now. 
 
ANALYSIS: The building would replaced two outdated and underutilized office 
buildings with a vibrant mixed use building with ground floor retail the activates 
the street.  The rooftop restaurant, with dramatic views of the airport and 
surrounding neighborhoods is a particularly welcome addition to the 36 Street 
corridor.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the request for site plan approval 
be approved, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Plans shall substantially comply with those submitted.  Substantial 
compliance shall be at the sole determination of the City.  Plans are as 
follows:   
 

 Sheet 1 of 1, Specific Purpose Survey by E Lopez PSM, dated 
03/22/2019; 

 Site Plan, by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 05/09/2019, and 
dated 05/09/2019; 

 Ground Floor,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 05/09/2019, 
and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Second Floor,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 05/09/2019, 
and dated 05/09/2019; 



 

Page | 3 
 

 Third to Sixth Floor,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 
05/09/2019, and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Seventh Floor,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 
05/09/2019, and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Eighth Floor,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 05/09/2019, 
and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Ninth Floor,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 05/09/2019, 
and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Mechanical Deck,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 
05/09/2019, and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Restaurant,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 05/09/2019, 
and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Roof,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 05/09/2019, and 
dated 05/09/2019; 

 South Elevation,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 
05/09/2019, and dated 05/09/2019; 

 East Elevation,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 
05/09/2019, and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Landscape Plan,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 
05/09/2019, and dated 05/09/2019; 

 Civil Plan,  by MKDA Florida, LLC., signed and sealed 05/09/2019, and 
dated 05/09/2019; 
 

2. All curbing shall be Miami-Dade County Type “D”. All landscaped areas 
must be enclosed with said curbing. 
 

3. Any freestanding sign must be a monument type only, the design of which 
must be approved by staff. 
  

4. All wall signage shall be of flush mounted channel letters only, or other 
individual letter type signs to be approved by staff. 
 

5. Parapet shall be of sufficient height to screen all rooftop equipment, 
excluding stair and elevator towers. 
 

6. Final architectural plans shall be submitted to, and approved by staff prior 
to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

7. The manner in which the alley is vacated must be approved by the City 
and any utilities located within the alley must be relocated at the 
applicant’s expense, in a location and manner to be approved by the City. 
 

8. A Unity-of Title or a Covenant-in-Lieu-of shall be executed combining all of 
the subject property, both public and private, into a single parcel.  The City 
shall be a party to the Unity-of-Title, and the manner and format of the 



 

Page | 4 
 

document shall be at the sole discretion of the City, and shall be recorded 
by the applicant with the Miami-Dade County Clerk’s Office. 
 

9. Vacation must be obtained from Miami-Dade County and the Florida 
Department of Transportation, and Miami-Dade Fire Department, as 
applicable. 
 

10. If a public art piece is installed, it shall have a value of not less than 1.5% 
of the estimated cost of construction of the project, and must be approved 
by staff prior to its creation or selection. 
 

11. A revised landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved by the City 
prior to the issuance of a building permit for the project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CC4649NW36Street  





































































RESOLUTION NO. R2020- 001

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING A

DEVELOPMENT ORDER FOR THE PROJECT AT 4601- 

4649 NW 36TH STREET TO INCREASE THE HEIGHT OF

THE TOP FLOOR OF A PREVIOUS APPROVED MIXED- 

USE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT BY EIGHT FEET NINE
INCHES ( 8' 9"); PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; 

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, Mr. Juan Carlos Oliva ( the " Applicant") is the Managing Member of 4649

NW 36 STREET, LLC and 4601 NW 36 STREET, LLC, which is each the corresponding owner

of the properties located at 4649 NW 36th Street and 4601 NW 36th Street, respectively

collectively, the " Properties"); and

WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted applications to the City of Miami Springs ( the " City") 

for alley vacation and site plan review, in order to construct an eleven story, 292, 194 square -foot

mixed used project (the "Project") on the Properties and over the alley adjacent and between the

Properties, which comprise a unified parcel of 34, 037 square feet; and

WHEREAS, at a Regular Council Meeting held on June 24, 2019, the City Council

approved the vacation of the alley located adjacent to and between the Properties with certain

conditions in order to facilitate the development of the Project; and

WHEREAS, at a Regular Council Meeting held on June 24, 2019, the City Council held a

duly noticed public hearing to consider the Site Plan; and

WHEREAS, following the approvals, the Applicant submitted an application to the City for

a variance to increase the height of the final finished floor by eight feet nine inches (8' 9") to more

appropriately house the restaurant/ retail use for which the space was intended; and

WHEREAS, on January 6, 2020, the Board of Adjustment recommended in favor

of this project under Case No. 07-V-19, site plan approval and variance for the applicant' s

proposed project subject to several conditions; and, 



WHEREAS, on January 13, 2020 the City Council held a duly noticed hearing on

the Application. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are confirmed, adopted, and

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference. 

Section 2. Decision. The Variances requested by the Application to increase

the maximum height of the project, and the height of the last finished floor of the building, 

by eight feet nine inches ( 8' 9"), thereby modifying the Site Plan for the Project

accordingly, is hereby approved/denied. Approval is subject to the following/ Denial is for

the following reasons: 

1. Plans for the Project shall substantially comply with those submitted, as follow: 

Survey for 4601 NW 36th St, by E Lopez PSM, dated, signed and sealed
March 25, 2019. 

Survey for 4649 NW 36th St, by E Lopez PSM, dated, signed and sealed
March 22, 2019. 

Survey for alley, by E Lopez PSM, dated, signed and sealed March 22, 
2019. 

Survey for 4601 & 4649 NW 36th St & Alley, by E Lopez PSM, dated, signed
and sealed March 22, 2019. 

Sheet PD -1, Paving and Drainage Plan, by MKDA FL., dated September 9, 
2019. 

Sheet PD -2, Paving and Drainage Details, by MKDA FL., dated September

9, 2019. 

Sheet SWPPP, Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, by MKDA FL., dated
September 9, 2019. 

Site plan, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated

November 8, 2019

Ground Floor, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated
November 8, 2019

Second Floor, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated
November 8, 2019

Third to Sixth Floor, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, 
dated November 8, 2019



Seventh Floor, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated
November 8, 2019

Eighth Floor, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated
November 8, 2019

Ninth Floor, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated

November 8, 2019

Mechanical Deck, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated
November 8, 2019

Restaurant, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated

November 8, 2019

Roof, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated November
8, 2019

South & North Elevation, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, 
dated November 8, 2019

West & East Elevation, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, 
dated November 8, 2019

Landscape Plan, by MKDA FL, signed and sealed by Jorge Pernas, dated
November 8, 2019

2. Any variances granted by the City Council shall be null and void if the
applicant does not obtain a building permit and commence construction within one
year of the date of the granting of the variance. If unusual circumstances exist, the
variance may be extended by the City Council for an additional six-month period. 
No extensions beyond the time periods specified above are authorized. 

3. If approved, the final order, including any conditions upon which the
approval is granted shall be incorporated on a cover sheet of the plans submitted

for building permit. 

4. The additional height shall be added to the top floor of the building only. 

Substantial compliance shall be at the sole determination of the City. 

Section 3. Implementation. The City Manager, City Attorney, and City Clerk

are hereby authorized to take such further action as may be necessary to implement the

purpose and provisions of this Resolution. 

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately

upon adoption. 



The foregoing Resolution was offered by Councilman Best who moved its adoption. 
The motion was seconded by Councilman Petralanda and upon being put to a vote, the
vote was as follows: 

Councilman Bob Best YES

Councilman Jaime Petralanda YES

Councilwoman Maria Puente Mitchell YES

Councilwoman Mara Zapata YES

Mayor Billy Bain YES

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of January, 2020. 

f ° ' fi:BAI N, 1VIiATTEST:^: r• 

Sf. • s

dir'* 
ERIKA GONZALEZ- kZENI& A

CITY CLERK - 
r

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAwt. C
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE C MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 

01

WEISS, SEROTA, HELFM , COLE & BIERMAN, P. L. 

CITY ATTORNEY



RESOLUTION NO. R2021 – 003  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, 
APPROVING A TENTATIVE PLAT APPLICATION FOR 4601 
NW 36 STREET, LLC FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4601-
4649 NW 36TH STREET (FOLIO NO. 05-3119-010-4040); 
PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 WHEREAS, consistent with the requirements set forth in the City of Miami Springs’ 
(the “City”) Code of Ordinances (the “Code”), 4601 NW 36 Street, LLC (the “Applicant”) 
has submitted a tentative plat application (the “Application”) pertaining to the property 
located at 4601-4649 NW 36th Street (Folio No. 05-3119-010-4040) as further legally 
described on comprehensive Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein (the 
“Property”); and  

 WHEREAS, City staff reviewed the Application and recommends approval with 
conditions which must be satisfied prior to final plat approval; and 

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2021, the City’s Zoning and Planning Board conducted a 
public hearing and recommended approval of the Application; and 

WHEREAS, public notice was provided in accordance with law; and 

WHEREAS, after a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council finds that the 
Application meets the requirements of the City Code and finds that the Application is 
consistent with the City’s Land Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 
welfare of the citizens of the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.  

Section 2. Approval. The City Council, after a duly noticed public hearing, 
hereby approves the Application in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” 
subject to the satisfaction of all conditions listed in Section 3 herein, and finds that it meets 
the approval criteria set forth in the City Code. 

Section 3. Conditions. The approval granted in Section 2 of this Resolution is 
subject to compliance with the following conditions, which the Applicant stipulated and 



 
 

agreed to at the public hearing and agrees to comply with and/or satisfy prior to final plat 
approval:  

a. That the plans shall be in substantial compliance with the following, which 
are attached hereto and incorporated herein as comprehensive Exhibit “C”:  

i. Sheet 1 of 2, Legal Description, Surveyor’s Notes and Location Map, 
dated, signed, and sealed by Omar Armenteros, PSM, December 22, 
2020; and 

ii. Sheet 2 of 2, Sketch of Survey and Geometry, dated, signed, and 
sealed by Omar Armenteros, PSM, December 22, 2020.  

Section 4. Violations. Failure to adhere to the terms of this approval shall be 
considered a violation of the City Code.  Penalties for such violation shall be as prescribed 
by the City Code, which include, but are not limited to, the revocation of the approval granted 
by this Resolution. 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon adoption. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by Councilman Fajet who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by  Vice Mayor Best and upon being put to a vote, 

the vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Bob Best    YES 
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo   YES 
Councilwoman Dr. Walter Fajet   YES 
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez    YES 
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell   YES 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of May, 2021. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 



 
 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY  



 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Descriptions 

Legal Description for 4601 NW 36 Street:  

Tract “A”, less the West 4 feet thereof, Block 131, REVISED PLAT OF, PORTION 
OF, SECTION 2 OF COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES, according to the Plat thereof, 
as recorded Plat Book 34, Page 40, Public Records of Miami-Dade County, 
Florida, formerly known as Lot 14, less the West 4 feet thereof, Block 131, 
SECTION 2 OF COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES, according to the Plat thereof, as 
recorded in Plat Book 10, Page 79, Public Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida, 
AND Lot 13, less the West 4 feet and less the South 15 feet thereof, Block 131, 
SECTION 2 OF COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES, according to the Plat thereof, as 
recorded in Plat Book 10, Page 79, Public Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

 

Legal Description for 4649 NW 36 Street:  

 

  



 
 

EXHIBIT B 

Tentative Plat 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT C 

I. Sheet 1 of 2, Legal Description, Surveyor’s Notes and Location Map, dated, 
signed, and sealed by Omar Armenteros, PSM, December 22, 2020; and 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
II. Sheet 2 of 2, Sketch of Survey and Geometry, dated, signed, and sealed by 

Omar Armenteros, PSM, December 22, 2020.  

 



           
Meeting Date:  August 28, 2023 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 
 
Via:   Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager 
    
From:   Armando Guzman, Chief of Police 
    
Subject: LETF Purchase – MSPD Rental Car Program 
 
Recommendation: Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the issuance of a Purchase 
Order to Royal Rent-A-Car Systems of Florida, Inc. for undercover/unmarked police vehicle rentals in an amount not to 
exceed $41,359.11 utilizing the terms and conditions of the competitively awarded Miami-Dade County Contract No. FB-
01293 pursuant to Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City Code. Purchase of the undercover/unmarked police vehicle rentals shall be 
funded using Police Law Enforcement Trust Funds, as funds are projected for Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget. 
Discussion/Analysis: On April 25, 2022 council approved a purchase order to Enterprise Leasing Company of Florida, 
LLC, utilizing Southeast Florida Governmental Purchasing Cooperative Group’s Bid No. 17-C-053, Undercover Vehicle 
Rental Services for SE FL Governmental Purchasing Cooperative Group, for the monthly rental of four vehicles for a 16-
month period, for $3,119.75 a month, valid through 8/31/2023. Before this council approval, staff had utilized Royal Rent-A-
Car Systems of Florida in the past for many years. The change to Enterprise Leasing Company last fiscal year was made after 
Royal Rent-A-Car Systems advised the Police Department that prices would be increasing approximately 30% from their 
current rates at the time, making the lesser rates at Enterprise Leasing Company of Florida, LLC more fiscally responsible. 
Nonetheless, the experience with Enterprise Leasing has been less than favorable, with reduced customer service, additional 
costs associated with adding and removing tints from each vehicle when swapping them in and out for operations, and a 
limited selection of vehicle types. As the culmination of this current piggyback option approaches, and upon further research, 
staff found an alternate piggyback option with the Miami-Dade County, Bid No. 8809-0/19, Contract No. FB-01293, Vehicle 
Rental Services, valid through 3/31/2025. 

Staff believes it is in the best interest that the City Council approve the issuance of a Purchase Order to Royal Rent-
A-Car Systems of Florida, in which not only will the City be saving a total of $867.60/per FY based on the new competitive 
contract rates for both companies per Contract No. FB-01293, but will also be saving $13,882.68/per FY by renting three 
vehicles instead of four with the new rates, when switching vendors from Enterprise Leasing Company of Florida, LLC back 
to Royal Rent-A-Car Systems. After comparing the department’s experience with both companies, staff believes Royal Rent-
A-Car can better fulfil the needs of the Officers and their civic duties. See attached resolution, roadmap, bid memo, and 
packets for awarded County Contract - FB-01293. 

 
Federal Statuite: Civil Asset Forefeiture reform Act, PL 106-185. 
 

Submission Date and Time:    8/23/2023 5:11 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  Police Department 
 
Prepared by:  Ariadna Quintana                    
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/Funded      Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 

Funding: 
 
                        Law Enforcement Trust Funds 
Dept./ Desc.:              Rentals & Leases 
 
Account No.:   650-2010-521.44-00     
 
Additional Funding:                  N/A 
 
                                                             FY22/23        
Amount previously approved:  $      49,916.00 
                                                             FY23/24 
                       Current request:  $      41,359.11 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $      41,359.11 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING 
THE ISSUANCE OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR RENTAL 
OF UNDERCOVER/UNMARKED POLICE VEHICLES TO 
ROYAL RENT-A-CAR SYSTEMS OF FLORIDA, INC. IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $41,359.11 BY UTILIZING THE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
CONTRACT NO. FB-01293 PURSUANT TO SECTION 31-
11(E)(5) OF THE CITY CODE;  PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) Police Department is in need of 

renting vehicles on a monthly basis for use as undercover/unmarked police vehicles 

(“Services”) to protect the safety of the City’s residents and visitors and to facilitate the 

provision of day-to-day operations of the City’s Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to authorize the rental of three vehicles on a 

monthly basis for the month of September 2023 and for fiscal year 2023-24 for the City’s 

Police Department in an amount not to exceed $41,359.11 (collectively, the “Police 

Vehicle Rentals”); and 

WHEREAS, Miami-Dade County (the “County”) issued an Invitation to Bid for the 

Services and adopted Resolution No. R-101-20 competitively awarding County Contract 

No. FB-01293 (the “County Contract”) to Royal Rent-A-Car Systems of Florida, Inc. (the 

“Vendor”) for the Services; and 

WHEREAS, Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) 

provides that purchases of supplies, materials, or contractual services under the 

provisions of state or local government, or private sector cooperative purchasing or 

not-for-profit companies, bids or contracts shall be exempt from the competitive bid 

requirements otherwise applicable to such purchases; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City’s Code of 

Ordinances, the City Council seeks to authorize the City Manager to issue a purchase 

order to the Vendor for the Police Vehicle Rentals consistent with the terms and conditions 

of the County Contract; and 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 3 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Approval. That pursuant to Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City Code, the 

City Council hereby approves the purchase of the Police Vehicle Rentals. 

Section 3. Authorization. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager 

to issue a purchase order for the Police Vehicle Rentals consistent with the terms and 

conditions of the County Contract in an amount not to exceed $41,359.11. 

Section 4. Implementation. That the City Manager is authorized to execute any 

purchase order or required documentation for the purchases described in this Resolution, 

subject to approval by the Village Attorney as to form and legality, and to take any action 

that is reasonably necessary to implement the purpose of this Resolution. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  



Res. No. 23-   
Page 3 of 3 

 

CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 









PROCUREMENT ROADMAP 

1  April 6, 2022 

 
 

Contract: FB-01293, Vehicle Rental Services 

Contract Term: 04/01/2020 – 03/31/2025 

Contracting Officer: Katherine Sosa, 305-375-2851 

Email: Katherine.sosa@miamidade.gov 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 

 
Please note that the vendor, Enterprise Leasing Co. of Florida, has provided information from updates to USDOT Advisories, 
as part of the Rental Agreement for the passenger van being rented as follows:  
 
RENTAL AGREEMENT ADDENDUM: RESTRICTED USE OF PASSENGER VANS WITH SEATING FOR OVER 10 OCCUPANTS 
 
Renter understands and agrees: 
(1) The van will not be operated or used in Canada. 
(2) The van does not meet Federal Bus Safety Standards and they will not transport children in the 12th grade or younger, other 
than family members, for school related functions. 
 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LARGE VAN ADVISORY: 
The risk of a rollover crash in a 15-passenger van dramatically increases as the number of occupants increases to full capacity. Placing 
a load on the roof also contributes to this increased risk of rollover. These two conditions change the van's center of gravity. As a result, 
the van has less resistance to rollover and handles differently from other passenger vehicles making it more difficult to control in an 
emergency situation. Most vehicle rollovers are single vehicle crashes in which the vehicle runs off the road and overturns when it strikes 
a ditch, embankment, soft soil, or other object. 
 

 

A. Contract Overview: 
This contract shall be utilized to obtain vehicle rental services for Miami-Dade County, as needed, on a daily, weekly, monthly, or bi-
annual basis.  The awarded vendors shall provide vehicle rental services to County employees who are conducting official County 
business. This contract is not for personal use by staff. All rental vehicles shall be the most recent model available, in new or like-new 
appearance, in good operating condition, complete with air bags, air conditioning, automatic transmission, power brakes, power locks, 
power steering, power windows, radio, radial tires, non-smoking, and have less than 35,000 miles. All rental vehicles must meet all 
Federal, State and Local vehicle safety standards, codes, ordinances, and/or regulations.  This includes, but is not limited to the 
Department of Transportation (DOT), Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS), and the Society of Automotive Engineering 
(SAE). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:debra.butler@miamidade.gov


PROCUREMENT ROADMAP 

2  April 6, 2022 

 

B. Awarded Vendors: 
Vendor FEIN & Suffix Address Contact Information 

Enterprise Leasing Company Of Florida, LLC 
 

Use this link to make reservations: 
https://elink.enterprise.com/en/20/04/miami-
dade-county.html 

 
Prior to pick-up, email Purchase Order to:  
MDCReservationRequests@ehi.com  

591664426-04 West Kendall:  12394 SW 128th St. 
Miami, FL 33186 

 
 

Miami South:  1100 NW 42 Ave. 
Miami, FL 33126 

 
 

Doral West:  2118 NW 107 Ave. 
Doral, FL 33172 

 

 
Monday – Friday 7:30am - 6:00pm 

Saturday - Sunday 9:00am - 1:00pm 
 

& 
 

Enterprise Roadside Assistance 
1-800-307-6666 

roadsideassistance@ehi.com 
 

Primary Contact: 
Dana Sutton, Director 
Office:  954-354-5108 
Cell:  954 909 8248 
dana.r.sutton@ehi.com 
  
Alternate:  
Michael Amor  
305-477-4799 
 
 

Royal Rent A Car Systems Of Florida, INC 
  
 

592334873-02 3650 NW South River Drive 
Monday – Friday 8:00am - 6:00pm 

Saturday 8:00am - 2:00pm 
Sunday – CLOSED 

  
3900 NW 25 Street 

Monday - Friday 5:00am - 1:00am 
Saturday – Sunday 5:00am - 1:00am 

 
 

Royal Roadside Assistance 
Call Greg Serrano 

 
 
 

Greg Serrano, Manager,  
305-305-1086 (cell) 
305-871-3000 (office) 
gserrano@royalrentacar.com 
 
Greg Serrano, Manager,  
Ismael Perera, President 
iperera@royalrentacar.com 
 

  

C. Awarded Pricing:  
To ensure availability, award was made to two (2) responsive and responsible bidders; who met the qualification and bid submittal 
requirements detailed in Section 2.3, based on the lowest fixed rental rates per vehicle classification.  County staff shall first issue 
purchase orders to the awarded vendor with the lowest fixed rate per required vehicle class. If the lowest awarded vendor is unable 
to meet the purchase order requirements, staff may then order from the next lowest awarded vendor offering the same vehicle class 
required. 

ENTERPRISE ROYAL 

Vehicle Classifications: 
Daily 
Rate 

Weekly  
Rate 

Monthly 
Rate 

Bi-Annual 
Rate 

Daily 
Rate 

Weekly 
Rate 

Monthly 
Rate 

Bi-Annual 
Rate 

Economy (ECAR)  
Primary is Royal 

$30.80 $215.58 $923.91 $5,543.46 $27.66 $193.65 $829.91 $4,979.47 

Compact (CCAR) 
Primary is Enterprise 

$30.80 $215.58 $923.91 $5,543.46 $33.82 $236.76 $1,014.69 $6,088.17 

Intermediate (ICAR) 
Primary is Enterprise 

$32.14 $224.95 $964.08 $5,784.48 $34.28 $239.95 $1,028.35 $6,170.11 

Standard (SCAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$35.48 $248.38 $1,064.51 $6,387.03 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Full-Size (FCAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$36.15 $253.07 $1,084.59 $6,507.54 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Std. Convertible (STAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$41.51 $290.56 $1,245.27 $7,471.62 $36.15 $253.07 $1,084.59 $6,507.54 

https://elink.enterprise.com/en/20/04/miami-dade-county.html
https://elink.enterprise.com/en/20/04/miami-dade-county.html
mailto:MDCReservationRequests@ehi.com
mailto:roadsideassistance@ehi.com
mailto:dana.r.sutton@ehi.com
mailto:gserrano@royalrentacar.com
mailto:iperera@royalrentacar.com


PROCUREMENT ROADMAP 

3  April 6, 2022 

Premium (PCAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$38.83 $271.82 $1,164.93 $6,989.58 $37.49 $262.44 $1,124.76 $6,748.56 

Luxury (LCAR) 
Primary is Enterprise 

$45.53 $318.68 $1,365.78 $8,194.68 $52.09 $364.61 $1,562.61 $9,375.68 

Compact SUV (CFAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$43.52 $304.62 $1,305.53 $7,833.15 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Interm. SUV (IFAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$43.52 $304.62 $1,305.53 $7,833.15 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Standard SUV (SFAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$44.19 $309.31 $1,325.61 $7,953.66 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Std. SUV 4x4 (SFBR) 
Primary is Royal 

$44.19 $309.31 $1,325.61 $7,953.66 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Full-Size SUV (FFAR) 
Primary is Enterprise 

$47.53 $332.74 $1,426.04 $8,556.21 $50.21 $351.49 $1,506.38 $9,038.25 

Full SUV 4x4 (FFBR)  
Primary is Enterprise 

$47.53 $332.74 $1,426.04 $8,556.21 $50.21 $351.49 $1,506.38 $9,038.25 

Luxury SUV (LFAR) 
Primary is Enterprise 

$53.56 $374.92 $1,606.80 $9,640.80 $58.25 $407.73 $1,747.40 $10,484.37 

Luxury Premium SUV 
(PLFAR)  
Primary is Enterprise 

$54.90 $384.29 $1,646.97 $9,881.82 $58.25 $407.73 $1,747.40 $10,484.37 

Std. Pick-Up (SPAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$40.17 $281.19 $1,205.10 $7,230.60 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Std. Ext. Cab P/U (SQAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$40.17 $281.19 $1,205.10 $7,230.60 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Prem. Ext. Cab Full-Size 
Pick-Up (PQAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$40.17 $281.19 $1,205.10 $7,230.60 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Full-Size Pick-Up (FPAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$40.84 $285.88 $1,225.19 $7,351.11 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

Pass. Minivan (MVAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$41.51 $290.56 $1,245.27 $7,471.62 $35.35 $247.45 $1,060.49 $6,362.93 

12 Pass. Van (SVAR) 
Primary is Enterprise 

$46.87 $328.06 $1,405.95 $8,435.70 $74.98 $524.89 $1,680.00 $10,080.00 

15 Passenger Van 
(OVAR or PVAR) 
Primary is Enterprise 

$46.87 $328.06 $1,405.95 $8,435.70 $74.98 $524.89 $1,680.00 $10,080.00 

 ENTERPRISE ROYAL 

Mini Cargo Van (MKAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$40.17 $281.19 $1,205.10 $7,230.60 $28.92 $202.46 $867.67 $5,206.03 

Cargo Van (RKAR) 
Primary is Royal 

$40.17 $281.19 $1,205.10 $7,230.60 $30.26 $211.83 $907.84 $5,447.05 

Concession Fee: 
Federal Excise Fee: 
Legislative Fees: 
Return Late Fee: 
Surcharge:  
Refuel Fee: 
Child Seat: 
GPS: 
Toll Fee 

$1.07 per day     
N/A     
N/A     
N/A     
N/A 
N/A + EIA Regular Grade Per Gallon Rate 
$13.32 per day     
$13.32 per day     
$5.29 per day/up to $24.03 mo.+ cost of tolls incurred 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
$4.02 + EIA Regular Grade Per Gallon Rate 
$9.31 per day 
$14.66 per day 
$12.04 + cost of tolls incurred 

 

 

 
 



PROCUREMENT ROADMAP 

4  April 6, 2022 

 
D. Indemnification and Insurance:  

 

http://www.miamidade.gov/procurement/library/boilerplate/general-terms-and-conditions-r19-1.pdf 
The insurance requirements below replace the requirements in Section 1.22 (A) (3).   

A. The Bidder shall furnish to the Internal Services Department, Strategic Procurement Division, Certificate (s) of Insurance 
which indicate that Insurance coverage has been obtained which meets the requirements as outlined below: 
 

3. Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used in connection with the work, in an 
amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  

All other requirements in Section 1.22 remain unchanged. 
 

E. Contract Instructions: 

End Users and Awarded Vendors must read the contract and adhere to the requirements listed within Section 3.  The sections listed 
below explain process and requirements; all end users should become familiar with these sections prior to utilizing the contract. 
 

 3.3 Acceptance 

 3.4 Accident and Incident Reporting 

 3.5 Additional Insurance 

 3.6 Alternates 

 3.7 Authorization Form / Reservations 

 3.8 Availability 

 3.14 Maintenance 

 3.16 Pickup and Return 

 3.17 Rental Agreement 

 3.18 Replacements 

 3.19 Roadside Assistance 

 3.22 Tolls 

 3.23 Traffic Violations 
 

F. Event Log: 
Date 

 
Action or Event Officer or Associate 

04.05.2022 Child Contracts revised to reflect PPI increase of 33.9% for all rates Katherine Sosa, PCO 

06.24.2021 Enterprise provided USDOT updates to legislation regarding 15 passengers in a van Katherine Sosa, PCO 

6.15.2020 Enterprise has created a dedicated email address & web link for easier reservations 
and coordinated pickups; additional pickup locations also added. 

Debra Butler, PCO 

3.31.2020 Roadmap and BPO created, and posted to the eProcurement Portal Debra Butler, PCO 

 

http://www.miamidade.gov/procurement/library/boilerplate/general-terms-and-conditions-r19-1.pdf


 
          

Meeting Date: August 28, 2023 

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

From:   Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager  

   

Subject:  Group Life Insurance and AD&D Insurance Benefits for the City 

 
 
Recommendation: Recommendation by staff that Council authorize the award of a three (3) year contract to The 

Standard Insurance Company, in the amount of $46,695.00 (for Fiscal Year 2023-2024), after obtaining a minimum of 3 

quotes for Group Life Insurance and AD&D Insurance Benefits for the City, as these funds are available in the 

FY23/24 Budget, pursuant to Section §31-11 (E)(5) of the City Code. For sub sequent Fiscal Years 2024-2025 and 2025-

2026 (years two and 3 of the contract), the annual premium will be based on actual enrollment at the time of renewal for 

active and retired employees.  
 

Discussion/Analysis: The City received our 2023/2024 Annual Renewal Premium rates via One Digital (City’s 

Employee Benefits Consultant), from UNUM in the amount of $72,636.00. UNUM is the current carrier for Basic Group 

Life Insurance and AD&D Insurance Benefits for the City. Their renewal was adjusted with an increase of over 

$25K from our current premium of $47,271.00 with a note on their renewal that stated the adjustments were 

needed to better align with current costs and risks. 

 

UNUM told us they were doing a total review of their clients in the State of Florida and the policy with the City 

was underfunded.  Therefore, they needed to increase the rates to bring the plan into agreement with their 

underwriting manual and they felt that the renewal was in line with their underwriting guidelines for the 

demographics of the City.   

   

Due to the increase, Bob Shafer from One Digital contacted additional carriers and requested quotes from each.  

Of the carriers contacted, Cigna – New York Life, Guardian and Principal declined to quote our insurance 

benefits, however, two (2) carriers – MetLife and The Standard did respond. The responses were as the follows: 

 

Carrier Name UNUM (Current vendor) MetLife The Standard 

Annual Premium $77,248.00 

Renewal  

$47,271 

Current 

Premium 

$52,575.00 $46,695.00 * 

 

Not only did The Standard Insurance Company provide annual premiums that were $ 576.00 lower than our 

current annual premium at $47,271, they included an accidental death and dismemberment (AD&D) insurance 

policy and a rate guarantee of 3 years. 

 

As a result, staff is recommending that Council authorize the award of a three (3) year contract to The Standard 

Insurance Company for Group Life Insurance and AD&D Insurance Benefits. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, SELECTING STANDARD 
INSURANCE COMPANY FOR THE CITY’S GROUP LIFE AND AD&D 
INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR EMPLOYEES IN AN AMOUNT NOT 
TO EXCEED $46,695.00; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) is in need of group life and 

accidental death and dismemberment (AD&D) insurance coverage for employees 

(the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, the City, through its employee benefits consultant, Digital Insurance 

LLC d/b/a OneDigital, obtained three proposals for the Services; and 

WHEREAS, Standard Insurance Company (the “Contractor”) provided the City 

with the lowest proposal (the “Proposal”) for the Services in an amount not to exceed 

$46,695.00 annually, which Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to select the Contractor for the Services and 

authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute any necessary agreements with the 

Contractor for the Services consistent with the Contractor’s Proposal; and   

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Selection. That the City Council hereby selects the Contractor for 

the Services. 

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to negotiate and execute any necessary agreements with the Contractor 

consistent with the Contractor’s Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” subject to the 

approval of the City Attorney as to form, content, and legal sufficiency. 

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 2 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 

 



Proposal Prepared on:
August 3, 2023

Proposed Effective Date:
October 1, 2023

Standard Insurance Company

Your Employee
Benefits Proposal
Presented by: ONEDIGITAL HEALTH AND BENEFITS - MIAMI

Prepared for: City of Miami Springs

Life and AD&D Insurance



Plan 2- 3908691;

Proposed Effective Date
October 01, 2023

Prepared for:
City of Miami Springs

1

Life and AD&D Insurance

Handling a Life insurance claim takes a special touch. All of our Life benefits employees complete annual grief training helping them to
empathize with beneficiaries and recognize when they need special attention. And we're focused on settling claims quickly: Our median
calculation turnaround time in 2021 was 2 days for clean claims and 4 days for all claims (internal company data as of January 2022).

Covered Members
1

An active employee of the Employer working 30 or more hours per week.

  • Class 1: All FullTime Employees

  • Class 2: All Retirees Under Age 65

  • Class 3: All Retirees 65 or Older

a

Basic

Class 1 Class 2 Class 3

Benefit Schedule 1 x Annual Earnings 1 x Annual Earnings Flat $5,000

Rounding Up to next $1,000 Up to next $1,000 n/a

Maximum Benefit $150,000 $150,000 n/a

Guarantee Issue Full Benefit Full Benefit Full Benefit

AD&D Benefit Matches Life Benefit Matches Life Benefit Matches Life Benefit

Age Reduction Schedule To 50% at age 70 None None

Employer Contribution 100% 100% 100%

Minimum Participation 100% 100% 100%

ab
c
d

Life Highlights 

Basic

Class 1 Class 2 Class 3

Waiver of Premium Eligible to age 60
 Waived to age 65 Not Included Not Included

Conversion Included Included Included

Portability Included Included Included

Continuity of Coverage Included Included Included

Repatriation Benefit Included Included Included

Travel Assistance Included Included Included

Life Services Toolkit Included Included Included

s006295
Highlight

s006295
Highlight



Plan 2- 3908691;

Proposed Effective Date
October 01, 2023

Prepared for:
City of Miami Springs

2

abcd

AD&D Highlights

Basic

Loss of life 100% (including disappearance and exposure)

Loss of one hand or one foot 50%

Loss of sight of one eye 50%

Loss of speech 50%

Loss of hearing in both ears 50%

Any combination of the above
losses 100%

Loss of thumb and index
finger of same hand 25%

Quadriplegia 100%

Triplegia 75%

Paraplegia 75%

Hemiplegia 50%

Uniplegia 25%

Seat Belt Benefit 10% of AD&D benefit payable up to $10,000

Air Bag Benefit 5% of AD&D benefit payable up to $5,000

Helmet Benefit 10% of AD&D benefit payable up to $5,000

Family Benefits Package Included

Portability Included

Additional Plan Design Details

• For Class 1: An Accelerated Death Benefit is included. Terminally ill members may withdraw up to 80% of their Life benefit to a maximum of
$500,000 (when Basic Life and any Additional Life are combined).

• For Class 2, 3: An Accelerated Death Benefit is included.

• If Life is sold with Standard's LTD, then the LTD claim will initiate a claim for Standard's Life Waiver of Premium.

• The Family Benefits Package includes:

– The Higher Education Benefit reimburses tuition expenses up to $5,000 per child per year towards a 4-year college education for the
deceased's children - not to exceed a cumulative total of $20,000 or 25% of the AD&D benefit per child, whichever is less.

– Career Adjustment Benefit reimburses tuition expenses up to $5,000 per year to help a spouse to return to the workforce after the death
of their spouse - not to exceed the cumulative total of $10,000 or 25% of the AD&D benefit, whichever is less.

– Child Care Benefit reimburses a family's child care expenses up to $5,000 per year - not to exceed $10,000 or 25% of the AD&D benefit,
whichever is less.

• The Helmet Benefit pays a benefit for a loss of life due to an accident that occurs when riding a bicycle or a motorcycle and wearing a
helmet.



Plan 2- 3908691;

Proposed Effective Date
October 01, 2023

Prepared for:
City of Miami Springs

3

abcd

Additional Plan Design Details (continued)

• A hand and/or foot that is lost and later surgically reattached will still be considered a loss.

• Travel Assistance is included and provides assistance with pre-trip planning, medical assistance services, emergency transportation
services, travel and technical assistance services and legal referral.

• The Life Services Toolkit is included and helps beneficiaries cope with grief and loss, get answers to legal questions, plan a memorial or a
funeral, and address financial concerns. Additionally, all covered employees will have access to online will preparation and other estate
planning documents as well as articles to help deal with identity theft, improve wellness and more.

• The AD&D Occupational Assistance service is included and provides access to a Workplace Possibilities (SM) Consultant who helps those
with a specified accidental dismemberment return to productive work and life.

• For Class 2, 3: Waiver of Premium is available upon request.

s006295
Highlight

s006295
Highlight



Plan 2- 3908691;

Proposed Effective Date
October 01, 2023

Prepared for:
City of Miami Springs

4

AB
C
D

Cost

Basic

Life

Members 186

Volume $9,524,000

Rate: Per $1,000 .365 

Monthly Premium $3,476 

AD&D

Members 186

Volume $9,524,000

Rate: Per $1,000 .040 

Monthly Premium $381 

Total Billed Premium $3,857

Rate Guarantee 3 years

Assumptions

• Rates include electronic documents. Printed certificates are available for an additional cost.

• Rates assume billing is centralized in one location.

• The proposed rates assume coverage currently in force.

• For Class 1: This is not our customary age-reduction schedule. We assume you have determined that the schedule you requested
complies with the ADEA.

• Series 20.

Conditions

• Member must be insured under Basic Life in order to be eligible for Basic AD&D.

• The elected benefit amount for Basic AD&D must match the benefit amount for Basic Life.

More Information

For additional information on the available features and benefits of Life and AD&D Insurance from The Standard, click here: 
https://www.standard.com/group_life_add 

https://www.standard.com/group_life_add
s006295
Highlight



Plan 2- 3908691;

Proposed Effective Date
October 01, 2023

Prepared for:
City of Miami Springs

Producer Compensation Disclosure

We recognize the valuable role of insurance advisors, consultants and brokers ("producers") in helping their clients design an employee benefits
program, and we support reasonable and fair compensation for these services. Producers may be eligible to receive compensation from The
Standard.

The commission quoted in this proposal are noted below. Additionally, fees for administrative, marketing or consulting services may apply.
If applicable, fees are noted below.

Flat 15% commission included for Life.

Unless participation is declined by the producer or client, contingent compensation is additional compensation that may also be paid and is
dependent on the satisfaction of one or more minimum requirements, such as a specified amount of new premium volume or persistency in
connection with the producer's block of business. For information about our customary producer rewards program visit 
www.standard.com/financial-professional/insurance-benefits/compensation. Some producers may have a contingent compensation
arrangement that differs from our customary program. Please consult with your producer for additional details.

About This Employee Benefits Proposal

We appreciate the opportunity to provide you with this benefit and cost summary proposal from The Standard. This document outlines certain
important features of the group insurance coverages available. This is not a contract or an offer to contract for such coverages. Detailed
information about other important features of the coverage proposed is available on request. Just ask your broker/consultant or your
representative at The Standard.

A completed application must be submitted before a group can be considered for coverage. Insurance will be effective after the application is
accepted by The Standard. If approved, we will issue a contract containing our customary language. It will not duplicate policy language from
another carrier. The group contract will contain provisions and defined terms not described in this Employee Benefits Proposal. The group
contract will control if there are discrepancies between it and this proposal.

This benefit and cost summary proposal expires on November 01, 2023, unless replaced or withdrawn by The Standard.

The proposed premium rate and plan design for each coverage are based on the underwriting data received by The Standard. Final premium
rates and plan provisions will be determined by The Standard on the basis of: applicable state laws, policyholder contributions, confirmation of
occupations, the actual composition of the group of persons who will become insured and our current underwriting rules and practices.

Financial Strength Ratings

For information about our Financial strengths ratings visit: https://www.standard.com/about-standard/company/financial-strength

The Standard is a marketing name for StanCorp Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries. Insurance products are offered by Standard Insurance
Company of 1100 SW Sixth Avenue, Portland, Oregon in all states except New York. Product features and availability vary by state and are
solely the responsibility of Standard Insurance Company.

www.standard.com/financial-professional/insurance-benefits/compensation
https://www.standard.com/about-standard/company/financial-strength


Meeting Date: August 28th, 2023 

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puentes Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

   

From:   Tammy Romero, Interim City Manager 

    

Subject: Authorize the City to apply for the “Esplanade Canal Hardening” Grant with the  

 Florida Office of Resilient and Coastal Protection Program  
 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by Staff that Council approve and authorize the City Manager to 

submit a Resilient Florida Program grant application in the amount of $827,450.00 to the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection Office of Resilience and Coastal Protection to fund the implementation of the 

Esplanade Canal Hardening Project.  

 

DISCUSSION: The funding will be used for the hardening of the Esplanade Canal from Westward Drive to North 

Royal Poinciana Blvd. along the east and west sides of the canal, including the planning, design and construction 

stages. The project will meet the outlined requirements for a Vulnerability Assessment under Section 380.093 of 

the Florida Statue. The grant requires a 50 % cost share. We received a Vulnerability Study and Action Plan grant 

in August of 2022 from the Florida Resilient Program for the 2022/2023 cycle in the amount of $174,600.00. As a 

follow-up, the City is now seeking an implementation grant under the same program within the Office of Resilience 

and Coastal Protection. The funding will be used for the hardening of approximately 2,000 linear feet of the canal 

banks along the Esplanade/Melrose Canal (from Westward Drive to North Royal Poinciana Blvd. along the east and 

west sides) of the canal. 

 

The objective is to mitigate flooding, erosion, accessibility, and roadway failure caused by current and projected 

storm events and storm surges. The project will provide safety improvements and will benefit a service area 

designated as high priority by the City with the aim to mitigate and eliminate damage caused by severe flooding due 

to storm events and sea level rise. 

 

The main benefits of hardening the canal bank include the prevention of roadway collapse and potential property 

loss and the preservation of approximately 50 mature trees at risk of toppling due to erosion. Moreover, the project 

aims to protect and preserve critical infrastructure, including schools, libraries, recreational facilities, and historical 

sites. Some important information to factor regarding the grant funding for this project: 

• Requires a 50/50 cost share (Approx. $400,00 for $800,000 total construction cost); 

• We may only use ARPA funding or City CIP funds for the cost share.   

• This is probably the last year of funding available in the Resilient Florida program.   

• There is over $260M available for this year’s program and there is a considerable chance that most of the 

projects submitted will be funded. 

• We have completed the vulnerability assessment and we have ranked this project as a high priority for 

resiliency in the City. 

Additionally, this project is part of an ongoing City plan to alleviate flooding and address environmental issues 

associated with stormwater.  This project considers the impact due to climate change as it prepares the City for 

planning and design to mitigate the risks of flooding, roadway failure, accessibility, and erosion as sea-level rise 

and storms become more intense and frequent over time in South Florida, this project area in Miami Springs faces 

bank stabilization failure as well as flooding and inundation of access roads. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 50% cost sharing of approximately $400,000.00 using ARPA funds.    



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE 
SUBMISSION OF A RESILIENT FLORIDA PROGRAM GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (FDEP) RELATING TO THE 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ESPLANADE CANAL HARDENING 
PROJECT; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection Office of 

Resilience and Coastal Protection (“FDEP”) is soliciting applications under the Resilient 

Florida Program (the “Program”) to fund eligible implementation projects identified under 

a vulnerability assessment report; and 

WHEREAS, in August 2022, FDEP awarded the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) 

a Program Grant in the amount of $174,600 for planning in order to develop a 

Vulnerability Assessment and Adaptation Action Plan (the “Report”); and 

WHEREAS, based on the results of the City’s Report, the City identified a need 

to implement the Esplanade Canal Hardening Project (the “Project”), to harden the 

Esplanade Canal from Westward Drive to North Royal Poinciana Boulevard; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to apply for an implementation grant under the 

Program for the Project in the amount of $827,450.00 (the “Grant”), which Grant would 

require a 50% match if awarded and accepted by the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve the submission of a Program 

Grant application to FDEP for the Project and authorize the City Manager to submit the 

Grant application for the Project in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 

and execute any necessary agreements and documents associated with the submission 

of the Program Grant application; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Res. No. 23-   
Page 2 of 2 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Approval. That the City Council hereby approves of the submission 

of the Program Grant application to FDEP for the Project.  

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to submit a Program Grant application to FDEP for the Project in substantially 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and execute any necessary agreements and 

documents associated with the submission of the Program Grant application, subject to 

approval by the Village Attorney as to form, content, and legal sufficiency. 

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Jorge Santin      
Councilmember Jacky Bravo     
Councilmember Dr. Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.   
Councilmember Dr. Walter Fajet, Ph.D.    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2023. 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



.

_____________________________________________ ___________________ 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

FLORIDA RECREATION DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
GRANT APPLICATION PACKAGE 

Required Signatures: Adobe Signature 

PART I — GENERAL INFORMATION           (DEP USE ONLY) 

Received: _____________________________ 

Postmarked: __________________________ 

Application Number: ___________________ 

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Name of Applicant: ________________________________________________________________ 

B. Federal Employer Identification Number:**______________________________________________ 
**(This number must be registered at My Florida Market Place with the address the warrant will 
be forwarded) 

C. Population: _______________________________________________________________________ 

D. Current Operating Budget: ___________________________________________________________ 
(This is the operating budget for the city, county or special district, and not just the department 
budget) 

E. Contact Person: _________________________________Title:______________________________ 
(The contact person is someone who will be in direct contact with DEP and be responsible for 
administering this grant if awarded) 

F. Mailing Address: ________________________________________________________ 

City ________________________ Zip Code: __________________ 

Telephone :(  ) ______________  E-mail: ___________________________________ 

FAX: __________________________________ 

I hereby certify that the information provided in this application is true and accurate. I further certify that I 
possess the authority to apply for this grant on behalf of the applicant. 

Signature of City or County Manager/Title Date 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 1 of 27 



2.  PROJECT INFORMATION 

A. Name of Project:_________________________________________________________ 

B. Project Type (Check One): Project cannot be a combination of acquisition and development 

Acquisition: ________ 

Development: ______ 

______On land owned by applicant 

______On land currently under site control by applicant 

Date site control expires: ________________ 

Trail Construction: ______ 

______On land owned by applicant 

______On land currently under site control by applicant 

Date site control expires: ________________ 

Development projects must be under site control (owned by deed, or leased or dedicated for 
minimum of 30 years from the date of application) by the close of the submission period 
( August 31, 2023 ). 

• School board property is ineligible either by lease or ownership. 

• Include a copy of the site control documents (e.g., deed, lease, etc.).  If providing a Quit Claim 
Deed, please attach a copy of a 30 year title search or title opinion. 

(Tab as Exhibit “N”) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 2 of 27 



C. PROJECT LOCATION: 

Street Address: __________________________________________________________ 

City: ______________________County: ______________ Zip Code: ________-______ 

GIS Coordinates: Latitude: ___________________ Longitude: ____________________ 

1. Submit a boundary map of the project area providing a description and sketch of the project area 
boundaries, display known easements and be legally sufficient to identify the project area. Aerial 
photographs are accepted as boundary maps, as long as the boundaries are identified (Visit 
website for example). 

(Tab as Exhibit “K”) 

2. Submit color, on-site photographs for all three copies of your application, sufficient to depict the 
physical characteristics of the project area. 

(Tab as Exhibit “L”) 

3. Location map and directions: Submit a detailed road map precisely locating the project site along 
with clear written driving instructions from the nearest federal or state highway. NOTE: Confirm 
that street names listed are the same as those posted on street signs in the area. Please do not use 
Map Quest or any other computer mapping program for this. 

(Tab as Exhibit “M”) 

D. LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS IN WHICH THE PROJECT SITE IS LOCATED: 
This should be the Florida Senate and Florida House district in which the proposed project site is 
located. If you are not sure of the district, contact your local office of the Supervisor of Elections. 
(There is only one each.) 

State Senator: ______________________________ Senate District Number: _________ 

State Representative: _________________________ House District Number: _________ 

E. TOTAL NUMBER OF ACRES BEING ACQUIRED OR TOTAL NUMBER OF ACRES BEING 
DEVELOPED: _______________________ 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 3 of 27 



F. DESCRIBE THE PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PROJECT. 

1) For Development Projects: 

(a) Provide a description of the proposed project which includes existing and future uses, 
existing and proposed physical improvements, natural and historical resources, any 

      proposed resource protection/conservation and any existing buildings on site. 

(b) Indicate if a natural spring is located on project site:  _____Yes ______No 

(c) Indicate if there is public access to the park either through an existing street or 
easement: 

_____Yes ______No 

Describe Public Access: 

(If additional room needed - Tab as Exhibit “P”) 

2)  For Acquisition Projects: (in addition to the above information) 

(a) If the proposed project consists of acquiring multiple parcels or from multiple owners,
      identify specific order in which the parcels will be acquired to ensure that in the event 

that all parcels cannot be acquired, the purposes of the project can be achieved.  Also
      address the ability to have public access to the park either through an existing 

street or easement. 

(If additional room needed - Tab as Exhibit “P”) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 4 of 27 



3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

GRANT MATCH RATIOS:  (Based on the grant cap of $200,000) 
Project Cost State Share Grantee Share 
$50,000 or less 100% 0% 
$50,001 to $150,000 75% 25% 
$150,001 up to $400,000 50% 50% 
Project Cost = State Share + Grantee Share 

Refer to Chapter 62D-5.055(4), F.A.C. for complete information on match requirements and match types. 
The Total Project Cost (Line F) must equal the grant request (Line A) plus the total local match (Line 
E).  This figure (Line F) should not total more than $400,000 for the purpose of this application. 

A. FRDAP Funds Requested (State Share)      Line A $__________________ 

B. Local Funds Available: (Grantee Share) 

1. Cash:                                                                Line B $__________________ 

2. In-Kind:                                                           Line C $__________________ 

3. Land Value:                                Line D $__________________ 
If property is developed, land value CANNOT be used as a match. 

Total Local Match:       Line E $__________________ 
Sum of lines B, C and D 

C. Total Cost of Proposed Project:                                  Line F $__________________ 

Sum of Lines A and E 
(Should not total more than $400,000) 

(If approved for REDI Match Waiver, fill out REDI Waiver Form located under FRDAP Administrative 
Forms at www.dep.state.fl.us/parks/OIRS) (Tab as Exhibit “O”) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 5 of 27 

http://www.dep.state.fl.us/parks/OIRS
www.dep.state.fl.us/parks/OIRS


D. PROJECT WORK PLAN (COMPLETE FOR ALL PROJECTS, DEVELOPMENT AND 
ACQUISITION): 

On page 7 & 8 as attachment 1, list the project Work Plan for the elements for this application.  The 
Project elements are listed with the related tasks and deliverables. Primary elements and support 
elements should be listed separately. Use as many project elements and tasks needed to complete the 
project. 

Remember to include each element in your conceptual site plan. Submit a conceptual site plan 
displaying the areas and facilities to be developed as proposed on page 7 &8 of this application.  
The site plan must correlate with the project boundary map and work plan elements.  The site 
plan must CLEARLY DELINEATE using color codes between facilities/opportunities currently 
existing, facilities proposed for funding (page 7 & 8) in this application and facilities planned for 
future development.  If project is an acquisition project, be sure to submit on the site plan the 
proposed elements to be developed as listed on page 17 of this application. Also identify different 
FRDAP phases on the site plan and any LWCF phases. 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS: 

PRIMARY RECREATION AREAS AND FACILITIES: Primary facilities include all recreation 
facilities and opportunities. Primary cost must be equal to or greater than fifty percent (50%) of the 
total cost. Primary examples are: beach access, picnic facilities, fishing piers, ball fields, tennis courts, 
trails, trailheads, shade structures for recreational facilities, etc. Enclosed structures are not eligible 
costs. Costs of planning and site preparation should be included within the cost of each element.  If land 
value is used as match, it should be included under primary cost. If this is a trail project, list the uses or 
types of trails. If developing one trail for multi-purposes state multi-purpose trail, but if doing several 
different trails list separately with each use (example: walking trail or bike trail). 

SUPPORT FACILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS: Support facilities are facilities which cannot 
stand alone, or which would have little or no public outdoor recreational value without the primary 
facility. No enclosed structures are eligible except restrooms, bathhouses or restroom/concession stands. 
Other support examples are: parking, landscaping, and security lighting. Amenities such as benches, or 
bike racks will receive no points when being scored.  The enclosed structures listed above cannot be 
phased and must be completed with one grant. 

ACQUISITION PROJECTS: 

If acquisition project, on page 7 & 8, list the project work plan for the acquisition phase of the project.  

(Tab as Exhibit “H”) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 6 of 27 



ATTACHMENT 1 
FLORIDA RECREATION DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (FRDAP) 

DEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT WORK PLAN 

Project Name:    ______________________________________________________________________ 

Grantee Name:    _____________________________________________________________________ 

The project reimbursement is limited to one (1) invoice upon completion of all Project Elements listed below and 
submittal of all Deliverables and required documentation identified in the table below.  Completion Documentation 
required prior to Reimbursement Request. 

Project Tasks, Deliverables and Required Documentation 

Task #1: 
Development 
of:_________________________ 

Amount of Costs 
to be Paid with 
Grant Funds 

Amount of Costs 
to be Paid with 
Grantee Match 

Deliverables and Documentation To 
Be Submitted Upon Completion 
And Before Reimbursement Can Be 
Approved 

(List each Primary project 
element) 

Provide Budget 
Detail 

Provide Budget 
Detail 

Project Completion Certification 

Final as-built site plan 

Florida Recreation and Parks 
Inventory Form 

Color Photographs of Project 

Notice of Limitation of Use 

Boundary Survey 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 7 of 27 



(List each Support project 
element) 

*All work will be completed in 
accordance with the approved 
plans. 

TOTALS: $ $ 

Performance Standard: Approval of deliverables is based upon review for compliance with the requirements 
for funding under the Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program (FRDAP); approved plans and 
application approved for funding. 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 8 of 27 



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING PROJECT WORK PLAN: 

DELIVERABLES/ELEMENTS/WORK TO BE COMPLETED: Identify ALL elements that will be 
completed under this Agreement. 

DELIVERABLE/ELEMENT BUDGET AMOUNT FOR REIMBURSEMENT: Must provide a budget for 
each element and identify the expense category and budget detail.  Provide description of the costs as follows: 
Salaries: identify the position title/hourly rate/# of hours to complete the deliverable; Fringe benefits: identify 
the % used to calculate the fringe benefits; Contractual Services:  identify what service will be paid for under 
the contract for services; Equipment: the purchase of equipment is not allowed under this Agreement, the 
rental of equipment is the only costs allowed that are associated with equipment; Supplies and Materials: 
identify what supplies/materials will be purchased; Other costs: identify what other costs are being requested 
(such as printing costs, other costs that do not fit into the other established cost categories (salaries, fringe 
benefits, equipment, supplies, indirect, contractual services); Indirect Costs:  identify the percentage that is used 
for the indirect being claimed for reimbursement (cannot exceed 15% unless prior approval has been obtained 
by the Department)..  

MATCH AMOUNT TO BE CLAIMED: The same level of detail must be provided for match as for 
reimbursement. 

DOCUMENTATION/DELIVERABLES TO BE SUBMITTED UPON COMPLETION: All of these 
deliverables must be submitted before final reimbursement can be processed. 

Completion Documentation required prior to Reimbursement 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 9 of 27 



PART II — EVALUATION CRITERIA 

GENERAL CRITERIA 

1.  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

A. Is the proposed project identified, in whole or in part, in the applicant’s capital improvement plan or 
schedule during the current or next three (3) fiscal years? 

Provide: 
1) A letter from the agency’s city or county manager certifying the five year capital improvement 
schedule is officially adopted and date adopted.  Project will not receive points if letter is not 
submitted and does not state the date CIP was adopted. 

- AND -

2) A copy of the five-year capital improvement schedule included in the applicant’s adopted Local 
Comprehensive Plan, stating project by name, amount and year (County or City budgets are not the 
same as capital improvement schedules) Please highlight project name, amount and year. 

(20 points) 

 ________ Yes  _________ No 

--- OR ---

B. Is the proposed project identified as part of the plan through an adopted resolution committing the 
applicant to amend their capital improvement plan or schedule and complete the project should it receive 
program funds? 

Provide: a copy of a fully executed resolution amending the existing schedule to include the proposed 
project.  The resolution must clearly indicate the proposed project by name, amount and year and 
cannot be older than 3 years. 

(10 points) 
 ________ Yes  ________ No 

(Tab as Exhibit “A”) 

2.  STATE COMPREHENSIVE OUTDOOR RECREATION PLAN 

A. Explain how the proposed project would address one or more of the issues or goals identified in the 
State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. Use the OUTDOOR RECREATION IN FLORIDA-
2008 (Chapter 6 & 7). Provide quotations or other appropriate references with explanations to 
justify the correlation. To receive points, must give a detailed explanation as to how the project meets 
the goals, cannot only list the goals. 

(Tab as Exhibit “B”)     (4 points) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 10 of 27 



B. 2008 Relative Need Index by Region 

The proposed project provides for a priority resource or facility need in the applicant’s planning region 
identified in the Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. Locate the applicant’s region and 
circle each priority resource/facility need as proposed in the project cost on page 7 & 8 of this 
application: 

(7 points) 

I Saltwater Beach Activities* Baseball or Softball * Picnicking *Football 
Outdoor Swimming Pool Use * Saltwater Non-Boat Fishing * Golf 
RV / Trailer Camping * Freshwater Boat Ramp Use * Soccer or Rugby 

II Saltwater Beach Activities * Nature Study * Historical or Archeological Sites 
Baseball or Softball * Picnicking * Freshwater Boat Ramp Use * Football 
Hunting * Horseback Riding * Outdoor Swimming Pool Use 

III Football * Picnicking * Nature Study * Soccer or Rugby * Baseball or Softball 
Horseback Riding * Outdoor Basketball * RV / Trailer Camping 
Freshwater Boat Ramp Use * Bicycle Riding – Unpaved Trails 

IV Historical or Archeological Sites * Baseball or Softball * Football 
Saltwater Beach Activities * Picnicking * Outdoor Swimming Pool Use * Outdoor 
Basketball * Nature Study * Golf * Soccer or Rugby 

V Picnicking * Football * RV / Trailer Camping * Nature Study * Baseball or Softball 
Bicycle Riding - Unpaved Trails * Outdoor Basketball * Soccer or Rugby 
Horseback Riding * Outdoor Swimming Pool Use 

VI Picnicking * RV / Trailer Camping * Football * Baseball or Softball 
Outdoor Swimming Pool Use * Nature Study * Historical or Archeological Sites 
Outdoor Basketball * Saltwater Beach Activities * Soccer or Rugby 

VII RV / Trailer Camping * Picnicking * Baseball or Softball * Outdoor Swimming Pool Use 
Nature Study * Freshwater Boat Ramp Use * Football * Golf * Horseback Riding 
Outdoor Basketball 

______VIII Picnicking * RV / Trailer Camping * Baseball or Softball * Football * Outdoor 
Swimming Pool Use Saltwater Beach Activities * Golf * Outdoor Basketball * Outdoor 
Tennis * Soccer or Rugby 

IX Picnicking * RV / Trailer Camping * Saltwater Beach Activities * Outdoor Swimming 
Pool Use  Golf * Football * Nature Study * Baseball or Softball * Outdoor Tennis * 
Historical or Archaeological Sites 

______X Football * Golf * Baseball or Softball * Outdoor Swimming Pool Use * Picnicking * 
Outdoor Tennis Saltwater Beach Activities * Outdoor Basketball * RV / Trailer Camping 
* Soccer or Rugby 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 11 of 27 



_______XI Outdoor Swimming Pool Use * Picnicking * Football * Baseball or Softball * Saltwater 
Beach Activities * Outdoor Tennis * Golf * Outdoor Basketball * Saltwater Non-Boat 

 
Fishing * RV / Trailer Camping 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015)        Page 12 of 27  
 
 



3.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Indicate which of the following apply (Check ALL that apply): 
(To receive points for this section any meetings, presentations, or surveys must be held in the current year or 
within the previous 3 years of application and each of the three meetings must be held separately to receive 
each set of points.  Meetings also must be held prior to the application submittal.) 

______A.   A pre-advertised public meeting was held solely for the purpose of discussing the proposed 
project. Attach a copy of ad and proof of publication for the advertisement. Advertisement needs 
to state where and when advertised. If submitting 2 applications, must hold separate meeting 
for each project (unless they are phased projects of the same park). If not advertised in a 
newspaper, need a written explanation as to how, when and where advertised, along with a 
copy of notice/advertisement. 

                                                                                             (Tab as Exhibit “C-1”)    (10 points) 

______B.   The project was discussed at a regularly scheduled meeting of the applicant’s advisory board 
responsible for park, recreation or leisure service activities. Provide a copy of the minutes of 
the advisory board meeting(s) where this project was discussed.  The board must be an 
appointed group of citizens, such as a parks and recreation advisory board, who would normally 
review projects similar to the proposed grant application.  Planning and zoning or similar boards 
may be used if a parks and recreation advisory board does not exist.  CITY OR COUNTY 
COMMISSIONS ARE NOT CONSIDERED ADVISORY BOARDS. 

 (Tab as Exhibit “C-2”)     (7 points) 

______C.   Public input on the proposed project was obtained through presentations to community  
organizations, neighborhood associations and/or a written opinion survey.  Provide 
documentation (minutes from the meeting which the project was discussed with date or 
thank-you letter from an organization, association, etc.) showing that presentations regarding 
this project were made to community organizations or groups OR provide a copy of the survey, 
who surveyed and summary of the results. Letters of support are not acceptable to receive 
points. 

(Tab as Exhibit “C-3”)     (4 points) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 13 of 27 



4. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 

Capability to develop, operate and maintain the project site: (Check ONLY one): 

Provide a brief description of how development, programming and maintenance will be provided and a copy 
of an agency organizational chart. Must provide both to receive points. 

______The applicant has a full-time recreation or park department staffed to provide facility development,  
programming and maintenance. 

(Tab as Exhibit “D”)    (6 points) 
______The applicant has demonstrated the existence of a full-time ability to provide facility development, 

programming and maintenance. 
(Tab as Exhibit “D”)    (4 points) 

______The applicant has other means of providing facility development, programming and maintenance. 
(Tab as Exhibit “D”)    (2 points) 

5. PARK PARTNERSHIP 

The proposed project is supported through a fully executed written cooperative agreement between the applicant 
and a private or public entity (within the current or past 3 years) in which said entity agrees to furnish 10% or 
more of the total project costs in cash, land, or labor services for the development/construction of this project 
with the applicant holding the leading management responsibility. The written agreement must be executed 
by the end of the submission period and quantify the donation in monetary units.  This can be a 
cooperative agreement between either parties or a letter from the entity agreeing to furnish 10% of the 
total project costs in cash, materials, land, or labor services.  

(A management or maintenance agreement is not acceptable.) 

______Yes     ______No 
(Tab as Exhibit “E”)   (3 points) 

6. TRAIL CONNECTIVITY 

The project provides for increased trail access by connecting an existing, publicly owned and designated 
recreational trail which is outside the project boundary. Indicate on the site plan the project 
trail/connection and name and location of existing trail(s) outside the boundaries. 

______Yes     ______No 
(Tab as Exhibit “G”) (5 points) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 14 of 27 



DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA (COMPLETE ONLY FOR DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS) 

1.  NEW DEVELOPMENT 

List the existing facilities/improvements on the project site. Include improvements such as baseball fields, 
basketball courts, trails, boat ramps, etc. (Bullet lists are encouraged) (If undeveloped, state None). The site 
plan must clearly delineate between facilities/opportunities currently existing, facilities proposed for funding in 
this application and facilities planned for future development. Identify and color code different funding 
phases from the existing facilities. 

(Tab as Exhibit “G”)     (5 points, if undeveloped) 

2.  INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT RECREATION AND PARK 
DEPARTMENT FACILITY NEEDS IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

A) List the facilities which are addressed on page 7 & 8 of this application which are identified in the 
priority ranked index clusters of outdoor facilities needs for renovation and/or new construction 
identified within the applicant’s population density as set forth in the Department’s study entitled 
“Infrastructure Assessment of Local Government Recreation and Park Department Facility Needs in the 
State of Florida” effective December 1995. (See attached pages 22-26 for Priority Ranked Index 
Clusters.  A project facility not listed in the priority ranked indexes will receive a score of a similar 
facility included in the indexes, as determined by the Department staff.) (If developing trails, must 
have separate trails to receive separate points. 

(Maximum 30 points) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 15 of 27 



B) Does the proposed project, in whole or in part, address the highest priority of infrastructure funding 
needs for the applicant’s population density as set forth in the study titled “1995 INFRASTRUCTURE 
ASSESSMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT RECREATION AND PARK DEPARTMENT 
FACILITY NEEDS IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA”. Use the table below to determine in which 
priority funding need ranking the project falls. (Check ONLY one): 

             _______________ Highest Priority Funding Need                          (13 points)

             _______________ Second Highest Priority Funding Need (8 points) 

Population Density 1 – Population Under 10,000 Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Construction 
Renovation 

Population Density 2 – Population 10,000 to 24,999 Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Renovation 
Construction 

Population Density 3 – Population 25,000 to 49,999 Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Construction 
Renovation 

Population Density 4 – Population 50,000 to 99,999 Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Construction 
Renovation 

Population Density 5 – Population 100,000 and 
Over 

Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Renovation 
Construction 

Source: The 1995 Infrastructure Assessment of Local Government Recreation and Park Department 
Facility Needs in the State of Florida 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 16 of 27 



ACQUISITION CRITERIA (COMPLETE ONLY FOR ACQUISITION PROJECTS) 

1.  INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT RECREATION 
AND PARK DEPARTMENT FACILITY NEEDS IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

List all the facilities that will be developed for this project.  Only facilities identified in the top three priority 
ranked index clusters of outdoor facilities needs for new construction identified within the applicant’s 
population density as set forth in the Department’s study entitled “Infrastructure Assessment of Local 
Government Recreation and Park Department Facility Needs in the State of Florida”, effective December 1995, 
will receive these points. (Priority ranked index clusters are attached as pages 22-26.) 

(15 points) 

2.  NEEDED RECREATIONAL ACREAGE 

Describe how the project provides for identified need(s) for additional park acreage pursuant to the applicant’s 
adopted local comprehensive plan.  Provide the following: 

A. ____Needed acres/Person and ____Total Acreage Under Local Control 

B. Provide excerpts of the applicant’s local comprehensive plan as supporting back-up documentation and 
highlight the information that pertains to this section. 

(Tab as Exhibit “F”)       (15 points) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 17 of 27 



3.  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

A) Is the proposed development of the property identified in the applicant’s capital improvement plan 
(CIP) or schedule during the current or next three (3) fiscal years? 

1). Provide: a letter from the agency’s city or county manager certifying the five year capital 
improvement schedule is officially adopted and date adopted.  Project will not receive points if 
letter is not submitted and does not state the date CIP was adopted. 

- AND-

2). Provide: a copy of the five-year capital improvement schedule included in the applicant’s adopted 
Local Comprehensive Plan, stating project by name, amount and year (County or City budgets are 
not the same as capital improvement schedules). Highlight project name, amount and year. 

(6 points) 

_______Yes     ______No 

----OR----

B) Is the proposed development of the property included as part of the plan through an adopted resolution 
committing the applicant to amend their CIP and develop the property should it receive program funds? 

Provide: a copy of a fully executed resolution amending the existing schedule to include the 
development of the proposed project. The resolution must clearly indicate the development of the 
proposed project by name, year and amount and cannot be older than 3 years. 

(3 points) 
 _______Yes     _______No                                                     

(Tab as Exhibit “A”) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 18 of 27 



TRAIL CONSTRUCTION CRITERIA 
(COMPLETE ONLY FOR CONSTRUCTION OF TRAIL PROJECTS) 

1.  NEW DEVELOPMENT 

List the existing facilities/improvements on the project site. Include improvements such as trails, trailheads, 
ball fields, basketball courts, etc. (Bullet lists are encouraged.  If undeveloped, state None.) The site plan must 
clearly delineate between facilities/opportunities currently existing, facilities proposed for funding in this 
application and facilities planned for future development. Identify and color code different funding phases from 
the existing facilities. 

(Tab as Exhibit “G”) (5 points, if undeveloped) 

2.  STATE GREENWAYS AND TRAILS PLAN 

Explain how the proposed project would address one or more issues or goals as identified in the Florida 
Greenways and Trails System Plan.  Use “Florida Greenways and Trails System Plan– 2013-2017”. Provide 
quotations or other appropriate references to justify the correlation.  Use a separate sheet if necessary. 

(Tab as Exhibit “H“) (6 points) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 19 of 27 



3. STATE OF FLORIDA DESIGNATED RECREATIONAL GREENWAY OR TRAIL 

The project is located on or connects with a State of Florida designated greenway or trail. 
Provide a map and documentation (letter from Office of Greenways and Trails) indicating connectivity.  
Designation Agreements must be fully executed by the end of submission period. 

_______Yes      _______No             
(Tab as Exhibit “I“)     (3 points) 

4. REGIONAL OR LOCAL GREENWAYS AND TRAILS PLAN 

Explain how the proposed project would implement a Greenway and Trail Plan adopted by either a regional or 
local governmental entity.  Provide quotations or appropriate references with explanations to justify 
correlation. Enclose a copy of the regional or local governmental adopted Greenway Plan. 

(Tab as Exhibit “J“) (4 points) 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 20 of 27 



5.  MIXED USE OR SINGLE USE TRAILS 

Does the specific trail design demonstrate that the project will support: 
Mixed use recreational trail opportunities, either motorized or non-motorized, or both? 

_______Yes     _______No                                                                                            (8 points) 

-------OR-------

Single use recreational trail opportunities? 

_______Yes        ______No                                                                                          (6 points) 

6. INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT RECREATION AND PARK 
DEPARTMENT FACILITY NEEDS IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

Does the proposed project, in whole or in part, address the highest priority of infrastructure funding needs for 
the applicant’s population density as set forth in the study titled “1995 INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENT 
OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT RECREATION AND PARK DEPARTMENT FACILITY NEEDS IN 
THE STATE OF FLORIDA”. Use the table below to determine in which priority funding need ranking the 
project falls. (Check ONLY one): 

_______________ Highest Priority Funding Need (13 points) 

_______________ Second Highest Priority Funding Need (8 points) 

Population Density 1 – Population Under 10,000 Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Construction 
Renovation 

Population Density 2 – Population 10,000 to 24,999 Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Renovation 
Construction 

Population Density 3 – Population 25,000 to 49,999 Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Construction 
Renovation 

Population Density 4 – Population 50,000 to 99,999 Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Construction 
Renovation 

Population Density 5 – Population 100,000 and Over Rank 1 
Rank 2 

Renovation 
Construction 

Source: The 1995 Infrastructure Assessment of Local Government Recreation and Park Department Facility 
Needs in the State of Florida 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 21 of 27 



Part III – Supporting Documents 

POPULATION DENSITIES 

Outdoor Facility Needs Ranked by Priority Index: Population Density 1 

Rank Renovation Construction 
Facility Points Facility Points 

1 Playgrounds 6 Baseball Fields 6 Cluster I 
2 Support Facilities 5 Softball Fields 5 
3 Tennis Courts 5 Playgrounds 5 Cluster II 
4 Rest Rooms 5 Rest Rooms 5 
5 Picnic Facilities 4 Support Facilities 4 
6 Baseball Fields 4 Soccer Fields 4 
7 Basketball Courts 4 Basketball Courts 4 Cluster III 
8 Softball Fields 4 Bike Trails 4 
9 Swimming Pools 4 Swimming Pools 4 
10 Boating Facilities 4 Tennis Courts 4 
11 Fishing Piers 3 Picnic Facilities 3 
12 Camping 3 Handball Courts 3 
13 Handball Courts 3 Fishing Piers 3 Cluster IV 
14 Football Fields 3 Football Fields 3 
15 Soccer Fields 3 Boating Facilities 3 
16 Beach Access 2 Exercise Trails 2 
17 Historical Facilities 2 Camping 2 
18 Shuffleboard Courts 2 Beach Access 2 Cluster V 
19 Nature Trails 2 Historical Facilities 2 
20 Other 2 Shuffleboard Courts 2 
21 Golf Courses 2 Nature Trails 2 
22 Bike Trails 1 Golf Courses 1 
23 Exercise Trails 1 Hiking Trails 1 Cluster VI 
24 Hiking Trails 1 Horse Trails 1 
25 Horse Trails 1 Other 1 

Population Density 1 - Population Under 10,000 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 22 of 27 



Outdoor Facility Needs Ranked by Priority Index: Population Density 2 

Rank Renovation Construction 
Facility Points Facility Points 

1 Rest Rooms 6 Support Facilities 6 Cluster I 
2 Support Facilities 6 Rest Rooms 6 
3 Playgrounds 6 Playgrounds 6 
4 Baseball Fields 5 Softball Fields 5 
5 Tennis Courts 5 Soccer Fields 5 Cluster II 
6 Softball Fields 5 Baseball Fields 5 
7 Basketball Courts 4 Basketball Courts 4 
8 Boating Facilities 4 Picnic Facilities 4 Cluster III 
9 Swimming Pools 4 Swimming Pools 4 
10 Picnic Facilities 4 Football Fields 4 
11 Soccer Fields 4 Tennis Courts 4 
12 Exercise Trails 3 Handball Courts 3 
13 Football Fields 3 Nature Trails 3 Cluster IV 
14 Shuffleboard Courts 3 Bike Trails 3 
15 Handball Courts 2 Boating Facilities 2 
16 Beach Access 2 Other 2 
17 Fishing Piers 2 Exercise Trails 2 
18 Camping 2 Golf Courses 2 Cluster V 
19 Bike Trails 2 Hiking Trails 2 
20 Nature Trails 2 Fishing Piers 2 
21 Other 2 Camping 2 
22 Golf Courses 1 Beach Access 1 
23 Hiking Trails 1 Historical Facilities 1 
24 Historical Facilities 1 Horse Trails 1 Cluster VI 
25 Horse Trails 1 Shuffleboard Courts 1 

Population Density 2 - Population From 10,000 to 24,999 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 23 of 27 



Outdoor Facility Needs Ranked by Priority Index: Population Density 3 

Rank Renovation Construction 
Facility Points Facility Points 

1 Rest Rooms 6 Baseball Fields 6 Cluster I 
2 Playgrounds 6 Soccer Fields 6 
3 Support Facilities 5 Support Facilities 5 
4 Tennis Courts 5 Softball Fields 5 Cluster II 
5 Baseball Fields 5 Playgrounds 5 
6 Basketball Courts 5 Boating Facilities 5 
7 Beach Access 4 Football Fields 4 
8 Swimming Pools 4 Tennis Courts 4 Cluster III 
9 Soccer Fields 4 Rest Rooms 4 
10 Picnic Facilities 4 Picnic Facilities 4 
11 Football Fields 3 Basketball Courts 3 
12 Softball Fields 3 Other 3 Cluster IV 
13 Boating Facilities 3 Exercise Trails 3 
14 Exercise Trails 2 Bike Trails 2 
15 Handball Courts 2 Nature Trails 2 
16 Other 2 Camping 2 
17 Golf Courses 2 Handball Courts 2 
18 Shuffleboard Courts 2 Historical Facilities 2 Cluster V 
19 Fishing Piers 2 Swimming Pools 2 
20 Bike Trails 2 Hiking Trails 2 
21 Hiking Trails 2 Golf Courses 2 
22 Nature Trails 2 Beach Access 2 
23 Camping 2 Fishing Piers 2 
24 Historical Facilities 1 Horse Trails 1 Cluster VI 
25 Horse Trails 1 Shuffleboard Courts 1 

Population Density 3 - Population From 25,000 to 49,999 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 24 of 27 



Outdoor Facility Needs Ranked by Priority Index: Population Density 4 

Rank Renovation Construction 
Facility Points Facility Points 

1 Playgrounds 6 Soccer Fields 6 Cluster I 
2 Rest Rooms 5 Playgrounds 5 
3 Support Facilities 5 Picnic Facilities 5 Cluster II 
4 Tennis Courts 5 Baseball Fields 5 
5 Soccer Fields 5 Support Facilities 5 
6 Baseball Fields 5 Swimming Pools 5 
7 Swimming Pools 4 Softball Fields 4 
8 Exercise Trails 4 Basketball Courts 4 Cluster III 
9 Softball Fields 4 Rest Rooms 4 
10 Basketball Courts 4 Other 4 
11 Handball Courts 3 Exercise Trails 3 Cluster IV 
12 Picnic Facilities 3 Golf Courses 3 
13 Boating Facilities 2 Tennis Courts 2 
14 Beach Access 2 Boating Facilities 2 
15 Fishing Piers 2 Fishing Piers 2 
16 Shuffleboard Courts 2 Football Fields 2 
17 Football Fields 2 Handball Courts 2 
18 Golf Courses 2 Bike Trails 2 Cluster V 
19 Nature Trails 2 Nature Trails 2 
20 Other 2 Hiking Trails 2 
21 Bike Trails 2 Horse Trails 2 
22 Camping 2 Beach Access 2 
23 Hiking Trails 2 Camping 2 
24 Historical Facilities 1 Historical Facilities 1 Cluster VI 
25 Horse Trails 1 Shuffleboard Courts 1 

Population Density 4 - Population From 50,000 to 99,999 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 25 of 27 



Outdoor Facility Needs Ranked by Priority Index: Population Density 5 

Rank Renovation Construction 
Facility Points Facility Points 

1 Support Facilities 6 Support Facilities 6 Cluster I 
2 Rest Rooms 5 Baseball Fields 5 Cluster II 
3 Playgrounds 5 Playgrounds 5 
4 Tennis Courts 4 Softball Fields 4 
5 Swimming Pools 4 Rest Rooms 4 Cluster III 
6 Boating Facilities 4 Soccer Fields 4 
7 Basketball Courts 4 Picnic Facilities 4 
8 Golf Courses 3 Bike Trails 3 
9 Softball Fields 3 Swimming Pools 3 
10 Picnic Facilities 3 Exercise Trails 3 
11 Historical Facilities 3 Hiking Trails 3 Cluster IV 
12 Baseball Fields 3 Other 3 
13 Fishing Piers 3 Golf Courses 3 
14 Exercise Trails 3 Camping 3 
15 Soccer Fields 3 Beach Access 3 
16 Handball Courts 2 Historical Facilities 2 
17 Camping 2 Tennis Courts 2 
18 Football Fields 2 Basketball Courts 2 Cluster V 
19 Nature Trails 2 Boating Facilities 2 
20 Beach Access 2 Fishing Piers 2 
21 Bike Trails 2 Football Fields 2 
22 Other 2 Nature Trails 2 
23 Hiking Trails 2 Handball Courts 2 
24 Horse Trails 1 Horse Trails 1 Cluster VI 
25 Shuffleboard Courts 1 Shuffleboard Courts 1 

Population Density 5 - Population From 100,000 & Over 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 26 of 27 



CONTACT FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

Contact Phone 

A. FRDAP Application Information & Help 

B. FRDAP Administrative Rule 
www.dep.state.fl.us/parks/oirs 

C. Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor 
Recreation Plan (SCORP) 
www.dep.state.fl.us/parks/planning 

D. State Lands, Bureau of Appraisal 

E. Recreation Accessibility and Safety Program 
Manager, Florida Park Service 

F. Office of Greenways & Trails and the Florida 
Statewide Greenways & Trails Plan 

850/245-2501 

850/245-2501 

850/245-3051 

850/245-2555 

850/245-3031 

850/245-2052 

DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 27 of 27 

http://www.dep.state.fl.us/parks/oirs
http://www.dep.state.fl.us/parks/planning


DRP-106 (Effective 06-05-2015) Page 28 of 27 


	Agenda Summary - August 28, 2023
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	6A Minutes - August 7, 2023 WKSP 
	6B Minutes - August 14, 2023 Council Meeting
	7A Re-Appointments
	8A Oliva Plat Approval
	9A Resolution - Royal Rental Vehicles 
	9B Resolution - Life Insurance for Employees 
	9C Resolution - Esplanade Canal Hardening Grant



